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P R O C E E D I N G S

---------------------------------------------------------



JUDGE KEITH A. GEORGE:



My name is Keith A. George.  I'm an Administrative Law Judge with the Public Service Commission of West Virginia.  We're here for a hearing in case number 04-1819-S-MA, a municipal appeal of the City of Charles Town's sewer rates.  At this point, I'll take appearances of the attorneys for the record.  Mr. Shingleton?



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


Yes, Your Honor.  My name is Hoy Shingleton of 115 Aikens Center, Suite 24, Martinsburg.  I am attorney for the City of Charles Town.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Mr. Glover?



ATTORNEY GLOVER:


Good morning, Your Honor.  David C. Glover on behalf of the City of Ranson.  I'm at the firm of Smith, McMunn and Glover, 516 West Main Street, Clarksburg, 26301.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Thank you, Mr. Glover.  Mr. Kelsh?



ATTORNEY KELSH:


Yes, Your Honor.  My name is James V. Kelsh representing the Jefferson County Public Service District in this matter.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Thank you, Mr. Kelsh.  Mr. Robertson?



ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


Good morning, Your Honor.  My name is Ron Robertson.  I'm here representing the Commission Staff in this case.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Thank you, Mr. Robertson.  Before the hearing, I was handed a copy of a written motion to intervene by Joe Coakley.  Mr. Coakley, would you like to present your motion to intervene, tell us why you should be granted intervention status?



MR. COAKLEY:


Yes, sir.  My name is Joe Coakley, I live at 64 A Court in Tuscawilla Hills, which in your papers it says Tuscawilla Territory, so it's a Charles Town utility department.  And I think I could be given intervener status since I submitted one of the petitions to call for this hearing and was unaware that I could ask for intervener status at that time.  I think it imperative that I be allowed to ask questions of the parties involved so that I can further state my case as to why the --- both the proposed rate increase by the City and especially the larger increase by the Staff is totally out of order for the citizens of Tuscawilla Hills and for myself. 



JUDGE GEORGE:


Thank you, Mr. Coakley.  And I understand that you're president of the Tuscawilla Hills Citizens' Association?



MR. COAKLEY:


Yes, sir, but I'm not representing them.



JUDGE GEORGE:


I understand that.  Any objection to Mr. Coakley's motion to intervene?



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


Your Honor, as I understand it, he is intervening on his own behalf only?



JUDGE GEORGE:


As a customer.  That's right.



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


Then in that limited regard, I personally have no objections.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Hearing no objection to your motion to intervene, you're granted intervention status.  I do expect you to act as a party.  You need to come up here to the table.  You'll be called upon to question parties, you'll have an opportunity to present witnesses, you'll have a right to brief.



MR. COAKLEY:


Thank you, Your Honor.



JUDGE GEORGE:


At this point, I'm going to open up the record to public comment, anybody that wants to make public comment.  



MR. MASTER:


My hearing isn't very good.  What did you ask?



JUDGE GEORGE:


Anybody that would like to make public comment.



MR. MASTER:


That's me.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Okay.  Sir, I need you to come up to the microphone.  You can have a seat there in that chair if you want to and you need to start by telling us your name.  And I apologize, I have a cold, so I probably don't sound like myself and I may not be as loud as myself.



MR. MASTER:


Well, I have a hearing problem.  My name is Don Master in Charles Town, was mayor of the City for 22 years and thankfully, we've got two councilpersons here that can correct me if I'm wrong on things of the past.  I am here for the quote, old citizens of the town. And to bring you up to date on the history of not only the sewer system but the water system, we depended on a stream going through town, Evitts Run.  The sewer system and the water system were both on Evitts Run.  Back in the '70s the Super Fund came in here, federal funding, to attack the underground seepage from the dump because they were afraid it was interfering with the fish development, leachate.  I asked them at that time if they wouldn't check our water system because we had so many cancer cases.  Back in those days --- well, I can give you some figures on that.  In 1872, there were 18,000 people in this county.  In 1972, there were 18,000 people in the county.  It was a beautiful, pristine county.  But there were also 5,000 acres of orchards and there were 16 different sprays a year on those orchards, arsenic, lead, DDT, and I was fearful that the drainage into our water system was causing the cancer cases.  



And in fact, the graduating high school class of '66, there are ten who have died of cancer.  There are two that are fighting cancer to the tune of one person having seven different operations.  And they came back with a report that Charles Town's water was no different than anyplace else in the country.  I wasn't satisfied with that.  So with the City Council, we tapped Shenandoah River, which I question sometimes whether it's any better than Evitts Run, because it was happening in Front Royal.  We also built the sewer system, which at that time was the out in the country.  And the citizens of Charles Town at that time took it upon themselves in the early '70s to not only put a sewer system for the City of Charles Town, but I personally thought that we were our brother's keeper and should take in Ranson as well.  At one point, of this 18,000 people, effectively we were serving 15,000 people, not only Charles Town and Ranson, but others within the county.  Going back that far and with the citizens of the city floating bond issues to deploy millions of dollars and now we're at a point where the city is receiving, in one month, $100,000 from the Charles Town Track.  I can remember when our budget for the whole year was $100 or $1,000, not $100,000, half of which is for the police department.  My salary was $250, not a month, a year, so you know I was there for the money.  My sense is that the citizens of Charles Town, I'm not speaking of the county or Ranson, should be alleviated of any proposed increase of the water system or the sewer system because of the $100,000 a month from the track, which is just unbelievable.  So I don't know the ins and outs.  I'm sure that Hoy does, my good Republican friend, but I'm sure there's better ways, even by tapping what we're getting from the track, to alleviate the proposed increase of the sewer system.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Thank you, Mr. Master.  Is there someone else that would like to make public comment?  Anyone else that would like to make public comment?  Mr. Shingleton, you may proceed.



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


Thank you, Your Honor.  First, a matter of procedure.  I have, with the permission of the Court, I'm going to hand a Certificate of Publication, which was required by earlier procedural orders and I've got copies for the parties.  I believe this complies with the earlier procedural order of the Court giving notice of the hearing today.  I'd like that entered into the record as City Number One.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Okay.  I'll mark it as City Exhibit One.



(City Exhibit One marked for 



identification.)



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


And I would call, as the first witness for Charles Town, Ms. Jane Arnett.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Very well.  I'd like the witnesses to go to this chair down here and the court reporter will place you under oath.

---------------------------------------------------------

JANE ARNETT, HAVING FIRST BEEN DULY SWORN, TESTIFIED AS FOLLOWS:

---------------------------------------------------------



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


Your Honor, before I ask any questions, Counsel reminded me that the --- I know Mr. Coakley, who was just granted intervenor status is not aware of this, but we have been meeting with the Staff representative along with the representatives of Ranson and Jefferson County PSD and the City and those parties, I believe, have agreed to a unified position and we'd like them to spell that out and then obviously, so Mr. Coakley knows, we might need to take a good bit of testimony on certain matters.  But with your indulgence, I'd like to set forth in a textual form what the parties have tentatively agreed upon.



JUDGE GEORGE:


So the parties being Charles Town, Ranson, the District ---.



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


The District and the Staff.


JUDGE GEORGE:

Okay.



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


And I'm really referring to the Staff report, which is dated February 28, which is, I believe in the record.  I believe the Court has a copy of it, the parties have agreed to the recommendations of the Staff with one major difference.  The Staff had recommended a post construction tariff increase of approximately nine percent to the rate payers of Charles Town, and I'm not sure of the percentage ---.



ATTORNEY KELSH:


Thirty-four (34).



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


About a 34-percent increase in the resale rate to the citizens of Ranson and the citizens of the District.  And that was intended to take into account increased operation and maintenance expenses post-construction of the half-million gallon expansion of the treatment plant approved last year in a certificate case. It was also intended to take the debt service into account as if it were a regular debt service as 

opposed --- if Your Honor remembers a unique financing scheme in that case.  The parties have agreed that only the O&M expenses should be passed on as a post-construction tariff adjustment and that for the time being the financing arrangements which are and which were approved in the certificate filing in the order of the court of last, I believe, August --- I think the hearing was in August --- would remain.  I believe I stated that correctly?



ATTORNEY KELSH:


Yes, you have.  Yes.



JUDGE GEORGE:


So what kind of numbers are we talking about?



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


I believe the Staff may have it.  I believe it would increase the resale rate to $3.71 a thousand and I'm not sure what the rate increase is for Charles Town. It's a lot smaller than what's contained in the Staff ---.



ATTORNEY KELSH:


4.11 percent.



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


4.11 percent.  And that's across the board at all blocks in the Charles Town tariff?



ATTORNEY KELSH:


Exactly.  Correct.



JUDGE GEORGE:


And you will put evidence on pertaining to the agreement?  You'll put evidence on pertaining to this agreement?



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


Yes, yes.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Okay.  And in all other regards, you're in agreement with the Staff report?



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


Yes, Charles Town does.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Okay.  But not necessarily all departments?



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


I'd have to speak for Charles Town.  I think that the other parties --- you had a couple comments.



ATTORNEY KELSH:


There are a couple of additional items. I don't think there's any disagreement with the parties. There are certain parties pushing for certain aspects and I think we did a good job of synopsizing the financial rates, effective rates.  



The district also wishes to see a couple things in the Commission's order resolved in this matter.  We spoke with Charles Town this morning and I believe Charles Town has no objection.  We haven't had a chance to really formalize this, but the Staff recommendation contains a couple of --- two credits to the District.  One is the transportation credit for the use of District facilities to transport wastewater from the former Sanitary Associates system through the District system and then to Charles Town for treatment.  The District wants to see the order contain explicit reference to that credit.  Second, the District took out financing for the 2000 upgrades to the Charles Town plant and it's paying debt service on that.  Staff recommended that the District receive a credit for that debt service, $41,411 I believe.  The District wants to see explicit reference to that credit in the order.  There's some non-financial aspects that the District would also like to see in the Commission's order.  Charles Town operates two wastewater treatment plant facilities, the Tuscawilla facility and the main Charles Town Wastewater Treatment Plant.  The District wants to require Charles Town to keep separate records on the cost of operating those two facilities.  



The Staff recommendation contains a recommendation that Charles Town purchase a number of portable devices and a portable flow meter, cameras for surveying lines and a truck to transport that camera equipment.  The District wants to have access to that equipment on an as-available basis, since I believe Ranson wants that as well since we're in part paying for those pieces of equipment.  We understand that Charles Town has some concerns, obviously, about proper treatment and use of those and I think we can work out something.  If they want to have their manpower present when those pieces of equipment are being used, I think we can work out something on that issue.  Lastly, if Staff identifies a large problem in inflow infiltration from the Charles Town system and Ranson and the District has a good amount of inflow it can trace as well.  We're installing flow meters in part of the --- continuous flow meters that they help us track I&I, but right now, Charlestown just reads its water meters on a bi-monthly basis.  That is, reads half its water system one month and half the other month. It's tough to track that in your I&I problems, and that's the practice.  We understand Charles Town is not sure whether it can get the water department to agree to inflow water meter readings.  The District grants would strongly support going to monthly water meter readings and those are the concerns of the District.



JUDGE GEORGE:


It seems like we're making opening statements.  Do you have one, Mr. Glover?



ATTORNEY GLOVER:


They nailed it, but to echo what Jim said, Ranson also, since resale customers are sharing portable equipment, we would like to have the opportunity to work something out if we're able to use that equipment from the District --- or the City's assistance that we'd be able to use that equipment.  And also, the meter readings for the Mountaineer, which would be everything mentioned by Jim, the District would specifically credit that to offset foundation and raise the tariff as opposed to raising rates.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Mr. Robertson, do you have an opening statement?



ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


No, Your Honor.  Yes, I do, Your Honor. The other thing that with looking at the particular rate with the $4.50 per thousand post-construction that the Staff had proposed in their original report, we are also willing to go back to make adjustments to the tariff and do the calculations to send in a post-hearing exhibit.  And talking with that would be also affecting the Charles Town post-construction rates themselves because it would be that 4.41 percent also would adjust the $3.71 for the resale rate.  And there are one or two other corrections that we have looking at just the Staff-recommended rates that is also contained.  Looking at --- it's actually on page 29, there was some contrary language that says but not for Tuscawilla that is also having inclusion of --- including Tuscawilla.  There's some clarification, but that was actually, I think, stated out of the ordinance.  But there were some things that Staff was going to file as a post-hearing exhibit in this case.  



JUDGE GEORGE:


Okay.  One of your post-hearing exhibits are new rates reflecting the agreed rates between the parties for post-construction rates; is that right?



ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


That is correct.  So in that 

aspect ---.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Can you file those a week from today's date?



MR. ACORD:


Certainly.



ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


That's not a problem.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Any objection to Staff filing a post-hearing exhibit a week from today with the rates for post-construction tariff?



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


None from the City of Charles Town.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Okay.  Go ahead and file that.  What other post-hearing exhibits did you want to file?

OFF RECORD DISCUSSION



ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


Also, talking with Mr. Acord, anything looking at the Staff recommendation number two, which is the post-construction rates, the other thing is any other adjustments such as with revenues and things, we would also need to file, I'll say, a revised cash flow of that to reflect the changes because of the amended or revised rates.  So it's everything associated with that that also would be a revised ---.



JUDGE GEORGE:


It would be a separate document but it would be directly related to that reduction?



ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


That is correct.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Okay.  Any objection to them filing supporting documents to support the agreed-to reduction post-construction?



ATTORNEY KELSH:


No objection.



ATTORNEY GLOVER:


No.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Okay.  Go ahead and file that one week from hearing as well.



ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


All right.  Also, there'd be an amount included in the Staff recommended tariff.  Both in talking with the Counsel for Charles Town that we were also going to leave open looking at the capital improvement fee because the Commission still has that case pending before the Commission.  Is that a true reflection?


ATTORNEY KELSH:


Yes, that is true.



ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


Because what we did in the City of Ranson, which there was a different ALJ, basically, we were looking at that coming with the Commission's order whenever that does occur.



JUDGE GEORGE:


So essentially, we won't have a tariff that reflects the capital improvement fee that's still on appeal to the Commission?



ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


It's on appeal to the Commission and eventually --- we were looking at from the Ranson case that I dealt with was leaving that as open in order 

for ---.  The town doesn't have to go back and adopt something else depending upon what the Commission Final Order has in that to make it consistent.  Because it is, as you know, the Jefferson County PSD case is up on appeal to the Commission as with the Berkeley County Sewer District case.



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


Your Honor, the City of Charles Town has the impact fee now.  We're collecting it, the only collections that we're making.  I'm not sure if Ranson is.

OFF RECORD DISCUSSION



ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


I think you have the capacity improvement fee as part of your sewer plan.  I don't know what ---.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Wait a minute.  We're losing the nature of a formal hearing.  We'll have people either sworn testifying or all kinds of chaos.



ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


But basically the City and the 

Staff ---.



JUDGE GEORGE:


It sounds like that's an issue that we need to brief and we need to talk about, what, you know, exactly what to do with the impact fee.  Anything else on the nature of opening statements?



ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


No, Your Honor.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Mr. Coakley, do you want to make an opening statement?



MR. COAKLEY:


I would just state, Your Honor, that I had hoped to show that the original reasoning for the City's rate increase for Tuscawilla Hills and the Staff report on same, for want of better words, doesn't hold water when compared to the proposed rate increases for Charles Town and we'll try to show that.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Thank you, sir.  Okay.  Do you want 

to ---?



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


Has the witness been sworn, Your Honor?



JUDGE GEORGE:


I believe she has.

------------------------------------------------------

JANE ARNETT, HAVING PREVIOUSLY BEEN SWORN, TESTIFIED AS FOLLOWS:

------------------------------------------------------

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:
Q.
Ms. Arnett, please give us your name, address and your job title with the City of Charles Town.
A.
Jane Arnett, Post Office Box 14, Charles Town, West Virginia 25414.  I'm the city manager for the City of Charles Town.
Q.
Now, as city manager, are you the chairperson of the Charles Town Utility Board?
A.
Yes.
Q.
As I understand it, the Charles Town Utility Board operates under Chapter Eight, Article 20 of the Code?
A.
Yes.
Q.
It is a combined utility?
A.
That's correct.
Q.
In other words, it handles both sewer and water?
A.
Yes.
Q.
And did the Utility Board initiate the action for the rate increase which is the subject of the hearing today?
A.
Yes, it did.
Q.
And pursuant to law, is it true that the City of Charles Town, by its City Council, has adopted the proposed rate increase by ordinance?
A.
Yes.
Q.
Prior or during this rate increase process, did the Utility Board hold a public hearing on the proposed rate increase?
A.
Yes, it did.
Q.
Did it advertise that rate increase?
A.
Yes.
Q.
And as a legal ad in the local newspaper?
A.
I believe it appeared in the legal section.  It may have been in the community news.  I believe it was legal.
Q.
Did anybody come to the hearing to give any comments regarding the proposed rate increase?
A.
No one came.
Q.
Now, as part of the ordinance process for the City of Charles Town and ordinarily any bill has to be read and voted upon twice; is that true?
A.
Yes.
Q.
And those --- the notices of those hearings for the City Council are advertised as legal advertisements in the local newspaper?
A.
Yes.
Q.
And did the City Council, in fact, vote two different times on the rate increase?
A.
Yes, they did.
Q.
At either of those hearings, did anybody call or appear to protest to comment on those matters?
A.
I believe Mr. Coakley appeared.
Q.
Okay.  But no one else did?
A.
Not that I recall.
Q.
Do you know when, prior to this proposed rate increase, when was the last rate increase for the sewer department?
A.
If memory serves, I believe it was 1998.
Q.
Generally, why did the Utility Board and the City Council propose a rate increase for the Charles Town sewer?
A.
Generally, the rates were not sufficient to meet the required debt service coverage since the post-construction of the 1998 project.  There was a major improvement project at the wastewater plant completed in '99, 2000 and those rates adopted then in '98 were just not sufficient to produce the required coverage.  In addition, normal costs of operation have increased substantially since that time.
Q.
Now, in fact, I believe the Staff report and the documents that Charles Town had filed were --- or prepared for the proposed rate increase, didn't it show that the water department for the City of Charles Town actually subsidizes the sewer department?
A.
Yes, it does.
Q.
And I believe the Staff report shows that there's approximately a quarter of a million dollars that's been paid by water customers for cash that goes into operating the sewer department; is that true?
A.
It is, in addition to cash to operate the sewer department as well as capital needs that were financed from that.
Q.
Okay.  Now, Charles Town operates two sewer plants; isn't that true?
A.
Yes.
Q.
It recently purchased about --- I guess about three years ago, a system called The Tuscawilla Utilities, Incorporated?
A.
Yes.
Q.
Now, that was both a water system and a sewer system; isn't that true?
A.
Yes.
Q.
And we're talking only about sewer here today.  Has Charles Town --- what has Charles Town's history been with operating the Tuscawilla Sewer System?
A.
I'm sorry?
Q.
What has Charles Town's history been with operating the Tuscawilla Utility Sewer System?  What condition did you find the sewer system in after you took ownership of it?
A.
It is certainly an aging facility.  The infrastructure is greater than 30 years old, very little maintenance had been done on the system and we are probably daily determining the inaccuracies of the system and its maintenance over those years.
Q.
The annual maintenance cost ---?  Let me back up.  As I understand it, Charles Town does not keep a separate set of books for the Charles Town --- or maintenance of the Charles Town plant and the Tuscawilla plant; isn't that true?
A.
True.
Q.
You enter everything into the overall expenses of the system?
A.
Yes.
Q.
But isn't it true generally that the actual costs of operating the Charles Town sewer system have been much greater than what was anticipated when the system was purchased from its prior ---?
A.
True.
Q.
You have had a chance to ---?  Let me just back up.  Right now, Charles Town operates in the Charles Town plant.  How does it bill both the City of Ranson and the Jefferson County Public Service District for its share of costs, both operating costs and capital costs, for the Charles Town treatment plant?
A.
The City of Charles Town bills based on the 1988 Sewer Service Agreement.  That has become difficult, at best, to create charge backs, if you will, for reimbursement by the other two utilities.



JUDGE GEORGE:


To back up just one step, you don't keep separate books and records for Tuscawilla now?
A.
That's true.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Okay.  Did you hear Mr. Kelsh indicate that that's one of the things the District wants you to do?
A.
Yes.  In preliminary discussions with Mr. Kelsh, we are certainly --- the City of Charles Town and its sewer department are certainly able to identify electric costs, chemical costs, labor will be reviewed for an allocation method, though that cost as well.  So there are fixed costs, certainly, that are easily identified and then before we have to make decisions on the labor, which we will certainly include the District to seek approval on that.


JUDGE GEORGE:


So it sounds like you're willing to create separate books and records for Tuscawilla on an ongoing basis at the request of the District; is that what you're telling me?
A.
I would say perhaps separate accounts rather than separate books, but they would be under the filing of one sewer department and a PSC submittal payment report.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Okay.  So it wouldn't be separate books and records, but you'd be able to identify the costs of running Tuscawilla ---

A.
By account.



JUDGE GEORGE:


--- by account.  Okay.  I'm sorry.



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


That's all right.  Thank you, Your Honor.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Mr. Shingleton, go ahead.

BY ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:
Q.
If I might, does the 1988 agreement contemplate that sewer flow meters will be installed throughout the systems of the three utilities to determine the amount of actual flows generated by the three utilities?
A.
Yes.
Q.
Up until very recently, that has not been done; isn't that true?
A.
Yes.
Q.
And it was tried once and then it --- nobody was happy with it and the data was ---?  Either the equipment didn't function or it was felt the data was insufficient; isn't that true?
A.
Certainly.
Q.
All three utilities thought that was the case?
A.
Yes.

Q.
But isn't it also true that recently, within the past seven or eight months, sewer meters, flow meters, eight of them have been installed at varying points in the systems of the three utilities?
A.
I believe it's six.

Q.
Is it six?  I'm sorry.  Six.

A.
But they have been installed.
Q.
Okay.  As I understand the Staff's report, the Staff feels that that data, the sewer flow data is not yet accurate enough, it needs to be further calibrated before it could be used for the purpose of allocating costs for O&M expenses and other expenses among the three utilities; isn't that true?
A.
That's true.  I believe all the parties agree with Staff.
Q.
All right.  And in fact, the three utilities are continuing to work with their engineers and their own employees to try to get to a point where the flow meter equipment can be used to accurately determine the amount --- the relative amount of flow coming into the treatment plant from each of the three utilities?
A.
Yes.


JUDGE GEORGE:


Six meters is all you need?
A.
There is a provision by Staff to add one for the Sanitary Associates flow now that that case has been settled by the Public Service Commission.  So there'll be a seventh.
BY ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:
Q.
But you understand that the Staff recommendation at this time is that the cost allocations amongst the three utilities should be done on metered water flows and not sewage flow rates; isn't that true?
A.
Yes.
Q.
Okay.  And the City of Charles Town accepts that for the time being?
A.
Yes.
Q.
Would it be the City's intent that if the flow meter equipment can be, by all parties, thought to be accurate, that eventually the rates would flip over to some type of rate based upon the flow meter?
A.
Yes.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Is there some kind of mechanism, time mechanism or process where that would happen?
A.
The City of Charles Town Utility Board hopes that the statement will be accurate enough to use within six months.  We said that, unfortunately, four months ago.  The data is difficult to interpret, there are certain lines that, for example, Ranson might own that the District uses that those numbers need to be backed out.  So December '04 is the beginning, I think, of more accurate data from those flow meters that we could then begin to measure an approximate six-month time frame. 



JUDGE GEORGE:


So six months from December '04 you think it's going to be there?
A.
I am not certain, but I would hope so.



JUDGE GEORGE:


And as soon as the parties agree that the meters are working appropriately then they'll bill under the meters, the flow meters?
A.
The Staff discussion yesterday was that we would probably have to go back for a tariff change to adjust to billings based on sewer flows rather than water meter readings.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Which means another ordinance?

A.
I would hope not, but I suspect yes.

BY ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:
Q.
Now, Ms. Arnett, it's true that I&I is a problem in this entire collection system of all three utilities just like it is in lots of other utilities?  Isn't that true?
A.
Yes.
Q.
It's a big problem with Tuscawilla; isn't that true also?
A.
Yes.
Q.
And am I correct that one of the purposes of using the flow, the sewer flow, as opposed to the water meters is to try to allocate I&I problems or issues among the three utilities?
A.
Yes.
Q.
Hopefully to get all three of them a more direct incentive to fix their I&I problems.  It makes it more apparent; isn't that true?
A.
Yes.
Q.
But the proposed resolution of this case does not contain any automatic --- it doesn't contain methods to automatically roll over to using this, the sewer flow?
A.
That's correct.

Q.
That probably will take a revised ordinance in order to handle that?
A.
Yes.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Would it at least be theoretically possible for this case to resolve that issue to say in six months it flips over to usage of the flow meters in the order in the paragraph of the tariff that a combination of both?  Is there any way we can save a whole other step in the process?
A.
It does not come to my mind that Staff may have a concern about the financial side of that equation.  I'll defer to Staff.



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


I'm sorry, Your Honor.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Go ahead.

BY ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:
Q.
If the Court and the parties can reach some accommodation in this very issue, this case might remain open for further review an adjustment to sewer flow metering for resale rates as opposed to using the water meter, would the City have any objection to that?  Reserving your right to object to any ---.

A.
My mind is trying to add that up.  The key there is open.  I'm not sure --- specifically with regard to that issue, I don't believe that the Board would have any objection to remaining open on the flow meter issue.
Q.
In theory, it should be revenue neutral on day one.  I mean, that would be the expectation of the three, I would assume.
A.
That's for the I&I.  It can't be.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Well, that's the thing.  That's the thing.  If you've got one of the three utilities that is really bad with I&I, then they're going to pay the penalty.
A.
Correct.



JUDGE GEORGE:


But it seems like --- I mean, it seems like the whole purpose in doing flow meters is that you want to encourage --- you want to know who ---.
A.
That specific utility, yes.



JUDGE GEORGE:


You want to know who the bad guy is?
A.
Even if it's Charles Town, yes.

BY ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:
Q.
And we are often --- Charles Town, its sewer collection system is, I would expect on average, the oldest?  And common sense would say it's probably got the most leaks because it is the oldest?
A.
Common sense would also tell you that all of the flows from the District and Ranson come to Charles Town before it enters the plant, so logically, it won't be revenue neutral to Charles Town.
Q.
Right.
A.
I think that's worth exploring, but then again, I'll defer to Staff on the impact of the numbers.  I'm not able to answer.
Q.
Now, you heard Mr. Kelsh comment about several matters which were of concern to the District.  One is the use of certain equipment.  It's true, is it not, that the Staff report as part of its rate increase recommends that the City of Charles Town purchase certain items of equipment, I think some portable meters, a couple of trucks, some vacu-trucks and things that are needed to better maintain the sewer plants, both at Tuscawilla and Charles Town and the distribution --- collection system; isn't that true?
A.
Yes, that's true but ---.

Q.
And isn't it true that in the Staff report those costs for those capital items are allocated not only amongst the Charles Town rate base, but amongst the resale rate for Ranson and the District?
A.
Yes.
Q.
And you heard Mr. Kelsh indicate that, and Mr. Glover, that those two entities might want to avail themselves of using that equipment in their systems at some time in the future?
A.
Yes.
Q.
I take it the City would have no objection as long as it could recover its labor cost component in using those pieces of equipment?
A.
On an as-available basis, I believe the Board would have no objection.
Q.
In other words, you would want your employees to be operating the equipment because those people will be trained to use this equipment?
A.
Yes.
Q.
Again, the cost of the equipment is already allocated to these two utilities because of the rate breakdown from the Staff.  But the extra labor component might be something that would have to be collected on an as-available basis?
A.
Correct.
Q.
The City does bill bi-monthly; is that correct?

A.
Bi-monthly, yes.
Q.
Six times a year?
A.
Yes.
Q.
You heard Mr. ---.
A.
No, I'm sorry.  Only for residential.  Commercial customers and industrial customers as well as Tuscawilla and the system known as Sanitary Associates are billed on a monthly basis.



JUDGE GEORGE:



So the residential customers in the Tuscawilla area are billed monthly?
A.
Yes.

BY ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:
Q.
Okay.  So that the Tuscawilla customers are billed monthly, everyone else bi-monthly for residential?
A.
Except for the Sanitary Associates.
Q.
The Sanitary Associates is not?
A.
Sanitary Associates is not.
Q.
Okay.  Has the City Utility Board or Council taken any action on going to full monthly billings?
A.
We've attempted to go to monthly billings using an outside firm.  It was disastrous.  We have had discussions with the Board on radio-read metering but it is, at this point, cost-prohibitive, so we're weighing the costs of additional labor, but it is in this labor market in the Eastern Panhandle a difficult scenario to hire away from the Virginia/Maryland market.
Q.
So the City's position regarding going to monthly billing, would it be fair to say you're continuing to study it and right now you cannot commit to doing that?
A.
Correct.
Q.
But again, you're looking at ways to always economize and be able, perhaps, to go that way if you could afford to do it?
A.
I would say yes but not in the near future.
Q.
There is likely to be an expense to be borne by somebody to go to monthly billing; isn't that true?
A.
That's true.
Q.
You have to go read the meter and you've got to send an extra bill --- you've got to send six more bills a month (sic); isn't that true?
A.
That's correct.  And it's presently not a sewer expense.
Q.
And again, that cost has to be allocated between the water customers and the sewer customers; isn't that true?
A.
Right now, it's borne by the water customers.
Q.
Okay.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Let me ask you.  Is your understanding that the District wants you to bill monthly?  Why?
A.
The District's position is monthly billings will help identify I&I.



JUDGE GEORGE:


But once you get the flow meters working, then you're not going to be needing the water readings at all to identify I&I; are you?
A.
It would help as a secondary tool, but I don't think that monthly billing should be the priority used to identify I&I, especially if the Commission approves portable flow meters, which could be used perhaps hand in hand with the seven meters being placed so that we could identify through the collections system where the I&I problems are.  I know that's a perfect world, but I still think that water meter readings would be secondary to assist and ---.



JUDGE GEORGE:


But still would be beneficial?
A.
Yes.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Okay.  
BY ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:
Q.
You heard Mr. Kelsh refer to the transportation credit of $1.65 and the debt service credit of about $41,000 which are contained in the Staff report?
A.
Yes.
Q.
And does the City have any objection to those matters being in the order if the Court would agree to do so?

A.
No objection.
Q.
Because again, they are --- we've accepted the Staff report and those matters were used in arriving at how much money the District will have to pay to the City for its sewer; isn't that true?
A.
Yes.

Q.
Is it the intention of the City if these rates as proposed by the Staff are agreed upon by the Court to impose and to enact the recommendations of the Staff regarding staffing of your system and the purchase and operation of the various components of equipment as in the Staff recommendation?
A.
Yes.



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


I believe I have no further questions at this time.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Very well.  Mr. Glover?

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY ATTORNEY GLOVER:
Q.
Good morning.  It's my understanding that Charles Town currently has three tariffs?
A.
Yes.
Q.
And I think the Staff recommendation would be reduced to one tariff?
A.
Correct.
Q.
And in that tariff recommended by Staff, the resale rate to be implemented by Staff is the $3.36 per thousand gallons is that --- am I correct in that?
A.
The initial resale rate, yes.
Q.
And then upon completion of the project, which was certificated in hearings last August, it was certificated in the fall, the rate would cover costs and some R&R, the rate increase will go from $3.36 to $3.71; is that your understanding?
A.
My understanding, yes.
Q.
Okay.  And I'd just ask to submit a post- hearing exhibit to nail down that exact rate, that's your understanding of what's going to take place?
A.
Yes.
Q.
Charles Town is agreeable to that?
A.
Yes.



ATTORNEY GLOVER:


I have no further questions.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Mr. Kelsh?

CROSS EXAMINATION
BY ATTORNEY KELSH:
Q.
Yes.  Ms. Arnett, I recall from one of our previous meetings that in addition to being city manager you're also a certified public accountant?
A.
Yes.
Q.
And you testified that the flow meters were installed within the last seven months or so; is that correct?

A.
Approximately, yes.
Q.
This rate case, Staff has reviewed the books and records of the City of Charles Town for the fiscal year ended June 30th of 2000; is that right?
A.
Yes.
Q.
And there's no flow meter data which was inputed that fiscal year report was there?
A.
No.
Q.
There was no flow meter data available for 

that ---?
A.
That's correct.
Q.
And this June 30th, 2005, I believe is the next fiscal year and there'll be flow meter data available.  Do you have confidence in that flow meter data for the entire fiscal year?
A.
No.
Q.
There's probably not flow meter data for part of it; right?
A.
Right.
Q.
And then the data that you received regarding reading these flow meters and we all have some concerns about the reliability of the flow meter data that we received to date; isn't that fair to say?
A.
Yes.
Q.
So we're getting switched to the flow meters as a basis for a resale rate, we need to have some good data to base that upon; don't we?
A.
I agree.
Q.
And we also have to have some information about the system's financials that corresponds to that data; don't we?
A.
Yes.
Q.
And we don't have that as of today; do we?
A.
Certainly I would agree with you on the flow.  The financial data is the financial data that is going to be submitted whether the allocations are based on flow or whatever you use.  The flow data is certainly key to producing a rate.  I guess what I would say is a fair exchange, particularly given the I&I.
Q.
Right.  Now, last fall, the City of Charles Town received a Certificate of Convenience and Necessity from the Commission for its phase one project; isn't that correct?
A.
Yes.
Q.
And I believe Charles Town, I believe that project will be completed as of December of this year; is that right?
A.
Hopefully.
Q.
There's a phase two project in the offing; is there not?
A.
Yes, there certainly is.  The preliminary.
Q.
And there's a possibility that as part of that phase two project, the City of Charles Town will adopt an ordinance either to pay the debt service directly through the conventional way or to perhaps establish an impact fee to have new customers pay for the new facility; isn't that a possibility?
A.
Among others, yes.
Q.
Okay.  There are other plans possible, it wouldn't be surprising to see that Charles Town would pass another sewer ordinance within the next three to five years?
A.
Perhaps not for the reasons you state.
Q.
Okay.  For general operational reasons?
A.
Oh, yes.  If that's one of the Staff's recommendations.
Q.
All right.  You mentioned that you currently read the Sanitary Associates system meters monthly?
A.
Yes.
Q.
The water meters.  What kind of water meter system --- do you have touch-read meters?
A.
Yes.

Q.
Throughout your system?
A.
Yes.
Q.
As far as you know, is it the intention that the former Sanitary Associates customers will continue to have their water meters read on a monthly basis?
A.
Yes.


ATTORNEY KELSH:


That's all I have.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Mr. Robertson?


ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


Just a couple of questions.

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:
Q.
Ms. Arnett, with the particular sewage flow meters that are owned by Charles Town, has it been the unreliability that you've had to contact back the manufacturer or how --- can you explain just a little bit more for the Judge of looking at the particular problems? I mean, you had to call the manufacturer back saying it's not working properly or --- could you just explain a little bit more about the sewage flow meters with the problems that you've had with them?
A.
To clarify, the 1988 Sewer Service Agreement required the District and Ranson to install the meters that would measure their flows.  The installation was completed by a joint effort of the three utilities, but in the end the flow meter monitoring and measuring has been the responsibility of the Public Service District working with Hugh Engineering.  So the specific problems that they've had ongoing would better be answered by the Public Service District in terms of ---.  I can't answer whether the manufacturing --- whether there is a tremendous learning curve.  I believe that's part of it. It just seems to be a host of different problems each month that are trying to be ironed out.
Q.
Okay.  So do you have an opinion once that these things are properly calibrated and are reading properly, are you looking at possibly looking at at least six months of consistent data or do you have an opinion of how long before you would actually go from the meter billing over to the sewage flow meter reading?
A.
It's sort of an opinion.  I think it's the consensus of the three utilities to have in place six months of data that can be relied on to then begin to convert or to even use that data to make any sense at all. Q.
Right.
A.
I just think that there is a concurrence there, that six months would be an accurate or a comfortable measurement to determine the accuracy.
Q.
Right.  And then from that you get that six months of consistent data and reliable data then it's your understanding that possibly allocate --- from a Staff study, allocation factors could change because if one utility has a lot of I&I, it may change everything looking at all of the allocation factors?
A.
Well, optimistically, the reliable data from December '04 that the Staff engineer used will be and prove consistent over the next six months, you know, with a plus or minus two to five percent variation.  So that the Staff's recommendation would be consistent, let's say six months from now without that six months of history, it's only a --- you know, we're optimistic that Staff had sufficient data although as they said, it was a snapshot. We want more than a snapshot.



ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


Right.  I understand.  Thank you, Ms. Arnett.  I have no further questions, Your Honor.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Mr. Coakley?



MR. COAKLEY:


Yes.

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. COAKLEY:
Q.
Ms. Arnett, in the original publication for the rate increases, is it true that the City stated that it was due to increased maintenance costs and then in an accompanying press release at the same time, they also cited litigation costs for a lawsuit that the City was involved in at the same time.  Is that true?
A.
The legal publications that we are required by the Public Service Commission to advertise our --- I would say a fixed notice, the press release, I agree, would have contained information on the pending litigation from the State Division of Environmental Protection.
Q.
Did it not say the --- did the press release not say that you would not need ---?  I don't remember the exact wording, but you would not need as large an increase or an increase at all, I forget which it said, if it were not for the litigation and ---?
A.
I don't recall the exact language, but I'm almost certain that it didn't say we wouldn't need any at all.  We wouldn't be going for a rate increase if we ---.

Q.
But it is possible and unfortunately, I did not bring that with me today, but the Staff report does touch on that, which we'll get to in a minute.  It did say that the rate increase was partially due to the litigation expenses the City was incurring at that time?
A.
I believe that's correct.
Q.
Okay.  The Staff report goes on to add construction costs to the reasoning which I did not see in any of your documentation, however, there is a statement in the Staff report stating that the proposed rate increases were due to increased maintenance costs, litigation expenses and I forget what the words were, ongoing --- the Staff report notes various construction projects as reasons.  To your knowledge, are you aware of what these construction projects would be?



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


Your Honor, I know Mr. Coakley is not an attorney and I don't want to interrupt his flow.  If he could refer in the Staff report to a certain page ---.



MR. COAKLEY:


Yes, I could ---.



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


He's paraphrasing and I --- so she can adequately respond to his question.



MR. COAKLEY:


Okay.  It's page 13, paragraph two.  



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


May I hand to the witness, her copy of the Staff report?



JUDGE GEORGE:


That would be fine.

A.
This paragraph starts Staff also included at going level the annual debt service associated with various loans from Convest?

BY MR. COAKLEY:
Q.
It is possible that I do not have a ---?
A.
Final copy.


MR. COAKLEY:


If you'll excuse me, I'll get the copy that I read from here.  And this is dated February 28, 2005.  



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


Yes, sir, that's the same copy.  What page are you on, Mr. Coakley?



MR. COAKLEY:


It's page 13.



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


All right.  Thank you, sir.

A.
This paragraph refers to the amount owing from amount owing to water from sewer that did cover legal expenses and various construction projects.  The one construction project that I recall was the second-story addition onto the wastewater treatment plant.  The rest were associated with those legal costs and I believe DEP litigation --- I'm sorry, engineering costs both for Tuscawilla and the Charles Town wastewater plant.

BY MR. COAKLEY:
Q.
Okay.  For the record, I stand corrected.  This was not part of the Staff report, the one of reasoning for the rate increase, right at the top.  But nonetheless, now with the reasoning being an increased maintenance cost and the litigation expenses, was any of the litigation expenses connected in any way with the Tuscawilla system?
A.
No, I don't believe they were.
Q.
And was anybody from the Tuscawilla area involved in the litigation or lawsuit?
A.
I can't answer that.  I don't know who from Tuscawilla is a member of the Potomac River system.

Q.
Okay.  But as far as you know, Tuscawilla Hills Development had little or nothing, if anything at all, to do with the litigation expenses that you had given as part of your reasoning for the rate increase?
A.
Overall, I would agree with that. 

Q.
Okay.  The maintenance costs, now you had stated here today that there are no separate records kept between the Tuscawilla plant and the Charles Town plant. Is there a breakdown of actual maintenance costs for the Tuscawilla plant versus the Charles Town plant?
A.
Well, again, as I stated to the Judge previously, those six costs, electricity, chemicals, certain monthly expenditures could be obtained by invoice.  It is the labor element that we will work more diligently on identifying for purposes of an allocation of labor.
Q.
Okay.  But is this not approved that these costs that you just stated, the electrical, chemical and to a certain extent the labor were in place when you bought the Tuscawilla system?  The expense ---.
A.
Not the --- well, those books and records were kept by a separate utility so I guess it had the advantage of the separate utility's Public Service Commission reports and filings, but those personnel did not come over from the previous owner.
Q.
No, but the fixed costs, the fixed maintenance expenses, did they pretty much remain the same so far as you know?
A.
They probably increased.
Q.
Increased in what respect?
A.
In costs because of changes that were necessary to operate that system as our operators saw fit.  I don't want to say that it was a significant increase they would have changed.
Q.
The electric costs would have gone up?
A.
I don't believe electric would have, perhaps chemicals.
Q.
Well, the chemical costs would have gone up?
A.
Perhaps.
Q.
Perhaps, but you're not sure?
A.
No.
Q.
Okay.  Now, you have stated that the Tuscawilla system has a significant I&I.  What are you basing this statement on?
A.
Reports from the operators of the system, the age of the system, the flows versus --- the system is old.  It is more than 30 years old.  That is my basis for --- primary basis for that statement.
Q.
So because of its age, you are surmising that the I&I must be high, you have not actually seen that or proven that or have no way to verify that?
A.
No.  We have not camera-tested the lines.  We have not explored specific blocks to identify where the problems are, but there are problems.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Are there flow meters associated with that system at all?
A.
Yes.  Well, there's a flow meter at the wastewater plant.



JUDGE GEORGE:



And is the amount of flow significantly increased with what water it emits?
A.
We have more issues with the water so it's difficult to make any analysis until we identify the water leaks, which we're in the process of doing now, so it is an aging system with a host of problems.



JUDGE GEORGE:



You've not made or are not aware of any comparisons of months that are particularly wet and whether that reflects in more of a treatment at that plant?
A.
I don't have enough information to answer.



JUDGE GEORGE:



Okay.
A.
The operators would.

BY MR. COAKLEY:
Q.
Okay.  Now, the Tuscawilla system is what is known as an aerated lagoon system; is that correct ---

A.
Yes.
Q.
--- to the best of your knowledge?
A.
Yes.
Q.
And this system puts most of the effluent to a system of ponds and irrigation for the golf course back into the ground rather than out --- falling into a waterway; is this correct?
A.
Yes, most of the aqueducts.
Q.
Okay.  So by doing this, would you say it was an environmentally friendly and sound system?
A.
No.
Q.
No.  Have there been any overages or spills from this system since you've owned the system?
A.
That is a difficult question to answer.  I'm not a wastewater certified operator.  I'm really not able to answer that.
Q.
Okay.  Does the DEP or the State of West Virginia cited this Tuscawilla plant for any of these things since you've owned it?
A.
Yes.
Q.
In what respect?  Could you elaborate on that a little bit?
A.
I'm not able to elaborate.  I'm aware that we have been cited but the DEP reports would have to be produced to specifically state those violations.
Q.
Okay.  Last question.  Is the Tuscawilla system at or near capacity?
A.
Yes.
Q.
If so, do you have an estimated cost of operating this system?
A.
There have been very, very preliminary numbers discussed with two engineering firms.  I can give you a guess, but it would simply be a guess.

Q.
A guess is acceptable in this case in my opinion.

A.
You're asking for a guess from me?
Q.
Yes.



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


Your Honor, I'm going to object.  We need to define what it is we're guessing about.  You know, if the plant's going to be enlarged to X number of gallons, how much and so forth so we get a little bit more specific and then maybe she can ---.



MR. COAKLEY:


Okay.  No problem.  

BY MR. COAKLEY:
Q.
Let's go on to the next question.  What would the upgrade consist of and why would it be done?
A.
We're looking at alternatives there more specifically to meet the Chesapeake Bay standards versus any upgrade for capacity reasons.  So our view right now is more towards compliance with the Chesapeake Bay standards.  Our permit is up for renewal now so that we will be working closely with the DEP to determine whether they will allow us to meet those standards over a period of years, whether they will invoke with this permit renewal 100 percent compliance of Chesapeake Bay standards.  We don't know at this time.
Q.
Okay.  You said an upgrade for capacity.  The Locust Hill subdivision has come online to the system as well as the Tuscawilla subdivision, Tuscawilla being fully built out, and Locust Hill is very close to full built out.  And these are the --- are these the only two developments that are connected to the Tuscawilla system at this time?
A.
At this time, yes.
Q.
Okay.  Now, the capacity increase that may be needed, does that cover the total of both subdivisions flowing into the waste treatment plant?
A.
My statement previously was that the City and its Utility Board were looking more at compliance with the Chesapeake Bay standards as an upgrade not a --- rather than a capacity upgrade.  So I'm not sure that I understand your question.
Q.
Okay.  Was capacity of the plant, when you bought it --- what was the capacity in number of customers at the time you bought it?  Do you know?
A.
I don't recall.
Q.
And you don't also know what the maximum capacity and customer count would be?
A.
That is in --- that is referenced in the DEP permit.
Q.
Okay.  You don't have that on your paperwork?
A.
700 plus.
Q.
700 plus and it seems to me --- and again, I would have to go through and look in the Staff report.  They mention something on the order of 960-some customers with the Tuscawilla system?
A.
Correct.
Q.
So if the DEP permits that 700 and some, then you are over capacity now?
A.
We have made the DEP aware of that limitation.  There has been --- there have been two occasions when we've met with the DEP on that specific issue and that will be addressed in our permit renewal that is going to occur this year.
Q.
Okay.  But if you're required to increase the capacity of your plant to meet the current customer load or proposed future loads, what would these upgrades consist of, do you know?
A.
I'm sorry.  If we are required to upgrade ---.
Q.
To increase the capacity.
A.
To increase the capacity.  There are a 

couple --- there's three options that we are exploring.  One may be a complete replacement of the lagoon system. Not the lagoons, but the clay bed ponds, with a newer more compliant --- more Chesapeake Bay compliant system. There could be, but highly unlikely, just an expansion of those ponds to increase capacity, but that would not meet the Chesapeake Bay standards.  And then the other option that certainly the Board has at its discretion is to connect the system to Charles Town.
Q.
Okay.  To connect the system to Charles Town would be a very expensive proposition, would it not, since there's no Charles Town sewer connections?
A.
Initially, we don't believe it would be any more expensive than the Chesapeake Bay new plant --- 

a plant ---.  A 100 percent replacement of the existing system to meet Chesapeake Bay on that site would be perhaps just as expensive.
Q.
Okay.  Now, you say total replacement.  Would this change the way that the Tuscawilla system currently operates as far as being an environmentally-friendly system?



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


Your Honor, I'm a little concerned we're going ---.  We don't have an engineering report that analyzes any of these options out there and it's not that I don't want to ask her the questions.  I'm not sure Ms. Arnett has enough information to give his questions answers, which I think he has all legitimate questions but the data doesn't exist to respond, I don't think.  



MR. COAKLEY:


Well, in essence, one of the things I'm trying to ascertain here, Your Honor, because of the proposed large rate increase for the Tuscawilla system, I want to make sure that --- and because the books are not kept separate, I want to make sure that the Tuscawilla system is not subsidizing all of the changes and upgrades and costs of ongoing for the Charles Town system to which we have no connection other than administrative and collections and now maintenance.  That's the reasoning behind my questioning here.  If the Tuscawilla plant needs upgrading, it's one thing and we certainly could understand that or I could certainly understand that and go along with rate increases.  However, if the maintenance costs on Tuscawilla are not broken out separately and we have no litigation expenses, then the proposed rate increases do not hold water for the Tuscawilla system.



JUDGE GEORGE:


You can ask her questions about planned upgrades to the Tuscawilla plant and she can answer them as far as she's able to, and I think that's what she's been doing.



MR. COAKLEY:


And that's fine and I understand that. I understand that.  I am not, you know, asking her 

for ---.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Okay.  Go ahead and ask her the next question, if you have one.


MR. COAKLEY:


Well, basically, that's the total of my questions for Ms. Arnett at this time.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Mr. Shingleton, do you have any Redirect?



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


Yes, I do.  Thank you.  

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:
Q.
What is your understanding that he, Mr. Coakley had asked you about the issue on page 13 of construction projects that were being paid for by the rate increase, proposed rate increase back to the water plant and you mentioned a construction project, small one, at the sewer plant.  Can you tell us what that was?
A.
Yes.  That was, I believe, $88,000 and some for an expansion that allowed an addition, a second-floor addition onto the wastewater treatment plant in Charles Town.
Q.
It was about $60,000 or $70,000?
A.
$88,000 rings a bell.  It might have been less.
Q.
Obviously, Mr. Coakley, and I think everybody in the room understands he is concerned that the ratepayers at Tuscawilla do not get, at least in the short run, charged with expenses that they should not be charged with.  And without making his argument that perhaps those rates ought to remain separate, at least for the time being.  It's true, is it not, that you have not retained an engineer to do a full-blown study of what your options are going to be at the Tuscawilla sewer plant; isn't that true?
A.
That's true.
Q.
But you're going to have to retain an engineer very shortly to do that; isn't that true?
A.
Yes.
Q.
And one of the reasons is is that the permit, the NPDES permit, the discharge permit is up for renewal every four or five years at the DEP level in Charleston?
A.
Five.
Q.
Is it this calendar year or next calendar year?
A.
It is this year.  It is now.
Q.
Okay.  Isn't it true that you had some informal discussions with individuals at the DEP about what Charles Town might expect of Tuscawilla?
A.
Yes.
Q.
One of those may be that the continuous discharge of treated wastewater from the Tuscawilla plant onto the golf course, as part of the golf course irrigation system may be terminated?
A.
The DEP has expressed a desire to terminate that, yes.
Q.
Okay.  And one of the issues is, I guess do you know or did the staff of the DEP indicate to you informally why that was a concern?  Because I think everybody in the community, Mr. Coakley, everybody seemed to think that's a good system over there.  Recirculating that water seems environmentally the prudent thing to do.
A.
Informally, their statements have been that there is at no time going to be a risk of fecal coliform being spread through irrigation, spray irrigation into or near those residential units as close as they have been built to the golf course.
Q.
In other words, just to summarize for the Court, there's been a great deal of construction within the Tuscawilla sewer system within the last five years?
A.
Particularly near the golf course known as Locust Hills.
Q.
And it's been expressed to you informally by DEP Staff that that is creating some angst at their level about continuing to discharge the treated wastewater on the golf course?
A.
Yes.
Q.
Proximity of children and so forth to the golf course if fecal coliform, E. coli perhaps is in small traces because of running out in the grass?
A.
Yes.
Q.
What would be the --- if that were to occur, what would be the solution?
A.
If what were to occur?
Q.
If you could not --- if Tuscawilla sewer cannot discharge its treated wastewater into the golf course irrigation system, what would be the ---?  How would you get rid of the water, the treated wastewater?
A.
The options, very preliminarily, have included, A, build the building and construct an effluent line directly to the discharge point that exists now, which would require going through several hundred backyards of these houses to construct that effluent line directly from the wastewater plant to the discharge point.  Certainly then, so to speak, the ponds and the irrigation system that's there now.  The discussions also looked at irrigation of an underground nature so that there would not be the spray and then therefore, no risk of this E. coli fecal coliform.  That too is very expensive to do, underground irrigation, and finally, the third option, again with very little cost numbers developed yet would be to construct a line that would decommission that facility and bring it into Charles Town.
Q.
And again, you haven't retained an engineer to analyze these things from a cost or environmental standpoint yet?

A.
And certainly not from a Chesapeake Bay standard.
Q.
And I want to mention the Chesapeake Bay again. You mentioned it in response to one of Mr. Coakley's questions.  I think the Court knows, but tell the Court and the public again, what are the Chesapeake Bay standards?  What are the issues surrounding that?
A.
In my non-operator's lingo, there are two standards that are now on the forefront to comply with the Chesapeake Bay standards, ammonia and TKN, which I believe is nitrogen ---



ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


Phosphates.

A.
--- phosphates.  They're very expensive to treat, they're very expensive to remove from the wastewater effluent, or wastewater period.  And they are going to be very costly to implement and meet for Charles Town and Tuscawilla citizens, too.

BY ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:
Q.
The Tuscawilla plant will, if it remains stand-alone, as you understand Maryland's requirement on Virginia and West Virginia, it will have to meet that standard by itself as a stand-alone system, if it remains a stand-alone system?
A.
Yes, we have confirmed that with the DEP.  The issue at this point is how soon, not when or not how much or whether we do have to but how soon we will have to comply.
Q.
And from what we know --- or let me ask you this a different way.  You can testify instead of me.  You've spoken with different consulting engineers regarding the Chesapeake Bay issue?
A.
Yes.
Q.
Is there a consensus among these consulting engineers about the likelihood of increased capital costs or O&M costs?
A.
Is there a consensus?
Q.
Yes.
A.
Well, yes.  It will go up.
Q.
Everything's going to go up?
A.
Everything's going to go up.
Q.
There's going to be an increased capital cost to build things to comply with being able to treat to these two standards?
A.
Yes.
Q.
And is it also true that O&M costs may be severely impacted?
A.
Yes, particularly in the testing to ensure compliance with Chesapeake Bay standards.  Those numbers are some discussions of having as high as $17 a month per customer for testing.
Q.
So that if the Tuscawilla rate remains separate ---?  Let's say the Judge let them have a separate rate, they would be expected, those customers, to bear 100 percent of the cost of Chesapeake Bay compliance for a small 200,000-gallon plant as well as the increased O&M expenses around there.
A.
As well as the capital, that is correct.  Not only --- and putting it in that perspective, it would be more of a burden to isolate costs for that system rather than to have the system as we have it today where four operators operate those systems jointly to what I believe is a significant cost savings.
Q.
Now, we've testified and I've interjected many times, there are multiple problems in dealing with the Chesapeake Bay, we just don't know everything.
A.
Correct.
Q.
But do you have an opinion on alternate rate impact ---.  From what you know today, do you have an opinion, if Tuscawilla's customers remain separate or if their rates are combined with all of Charles Town sewer customers, do you have an opinion on ultimate rate impact on the Tuscawilla customers?
A.
Not any more than a guess, but my guess is if they were kept separate in this rate case then the ultimate impact to meet Chesapeake Bay in the future, which will be required by 2010, will cause a more significant increase the second time around, if that makes sense.
Q.
And again, you've said you don't know.  Nobody can tell us that today?
A.
I can with certainty say that the Chesapeake --- meeting with Chesapeake Bay will require all customers affected by the Chesapeake Bay, and I believe that's nine counties in West Virginia, they're going to be affected tremendously. 

Q.
Now, I want to switch to one other thing about capital construction with Tuscawilla.  Mr. Coakley asked you some questions about the current permit and I believe you responded, but isn't it true that the current permit has a limit in total gallons but also a limit as to number of customer hookups?
A.
Yes, and as soon as we ---.
Q.
How unusual?
A.
Very unusual.  We have notified the DEP of that. 

Their position is that we are compliant with the flow and any effluent measurement so that the correction, if you will, to the permit that originally contained a number of customers will be addressed in this permit renewal.
Q.
But is it not also true that there are still 150 or so homes to be constructed within Locust Hill?
A.
Yes.
Q.
And with the bringing on of those homes, will the plant ---?  Forget Chesapeake Bay, isn't it true that it's going to require an expansion of treatment capacity of some amount?
A.
I can't say right today.
Q.
You're not certain yet?
A.
No.


ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


No further questions, Your Honor.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Mr. Glover?



ATTORNEY GLOVER:


No questions.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Mr. Kelsh?



ATTORNEY KELSH:


Just briefly.

RECROSS EXAMINATION

BY ATTORNEY KELSH:
Q.
Ms. Arnett, you indicated that you agreed with Staff's recommendation as to the equipment and the like. 

One of those is that Charles Town install or purchase three new flow meters.  As I understand it, one is to be installed at Sanitary Associates, so if you ---?  Do you know how quickly Charles Town can install that flow meter at Sanitary Associates?
A.
Based on the original installation of the previous six and assuming that this rate increase is effected to allow for coverage of costs, I think we could have them installed, I'd say in three months.  But that again is dependent on the rate increase obtained here today.
Q.
And that is within three months of today or within three months of that rate becoming effective?
A.
I'm really not sure that the City Utility Board has the money anywhere to order those --- to order the one meter that you're talking about today.  I'm just not comfortable, I wouldn't recommend that.  We would have to see where we are at the outcome of this hearing.

Q.
And I presume that that meter will be compatible with the existing meters that are in the ground?
A.
Oh, yeah.  Again, for consistency, the Staff recommendation was to order one for a replacement so it would obviously be the same meter.



ATTORNEY KELSH:


Thank you.  That's all I have.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Mr. Robertson?


ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


I have just a couple of questions, Your Honor.  

RECROSS EXAMINATION

BY ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:

Q.
With the Staff recommended increase with the consolidation of Tuscawilla, I'll just call them the Charles Town core customers and the Sanitary Associates, former Sanitary Associates customers, Staff has provided, I believe, two additional field employees for the sewer operations?
A.
Yes.

Q.
And with that, that will be effective not only to Charles Town core customers and Sanitary Associates but that will also have impact upon Tuscawilla's of doing, you said, little maintenance.  So with other maintenance, you can increase the maintenance that is into the Tuscawilla system?
A.
Yes.
Q.
The other thing with the equipment purchases, this is for the whole Charles Town sewer, it's just not to the Charles Town core customers, this will also affect the operations and looking at camera --- or looking at the portable sewage flow meters that will also benefit Tuscawilla and its operating system?
A.
Yes.



ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


Okay.  Thank you, Ms. Arnett.  I have no further questions, Your Honor.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Mr. Coakley?


MR. COAKLEY:


Two questions, Your Honor.

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. COAKLEY:
Q.
The list of equipment that the Staff has included in this report for purchasing includes a dump truck, which within the body of reports says would be used for hauling sludge.  Is there any sludge haul from the Tuscawilla plant?
A.
No.
Q.
Okay.  The turbidity meter that is in the same chart, would that be used for the Tuscawilla system?
A.
No.
Q.
There could be other things in that chart with which I am not familiar that also would not be used for the Tuscawilla system; is that correct, or is that possible?
A.
That's possible, yes.
Q.
The Chesapeake Bay standards that evidently everybody will have to meet, are they not dependent upon discharges into natural waterways?  In other words, if there are no discharges in the natural waterways, would the system still have to meet the Chesapeake Bay standard?
A.
All I'm going on is the fact that the DEP has stated very loud and clear that we will comply by 2010.  Natural ---.  I don't know. 

Q.
Okay.  One final question.  The final pond in the Tuscawilla system, the outfall from this pond or overflow, if you will leads directly into Evitts Run.  Is this overflow or outfall metered in any way?  Is there a flow meter there?
A.
No.
Q.
So if there is a flow into Evitts Run, how would we know about it?
A.
The permit allows discharge into Evitts Run so there has been flow discharged into Evitts Run. 

Q.
But if there's no meter and there's nobody there 24/7 monitoring it, how do we know there's been flow to Evitts Run?
A.
Well, we perhaps on a minute by minute basis wouldn't know.  There are certain events that would occur that would lend themselves to actually a discharge into Evitts Run.  High tide water, excessive rain.



MR. COAKLEY:


Okay.  That's all the questions I have.



JUDGE GEORGE:


You may step aside.  Thank you very much.  You may call your next witness.



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


I have no further witnesses, Your Honor.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Staff, you may call your first witness.



ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


Staff would like to call Mr. Dave Acord.  



JUDGE GEORGE:


Why don't you put him under witness and then we'll take a five-minute break?

---------------------------------------------------------

DAVID L. ACORD, II, HAVING FIRST BEEN DULY SWORN, TESTIFIED AS FOLLOWS:

---------------------------------------------------------



JUDGE GEORGE:


Okay.  Let's go off the record for about five minutes.

SHORT BREAK TAKEN



JUDGE GEORGE:


On the record.  Mr. Robertson?



ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


Thank you, Your Honor.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:
Q.
Could you please state your name and your position at the Public Service Commission?
A.
Yes.  David L. Acord, II, I'm the utilities analyst supervisor for the water and wastewater division of the Public Service Commission.
Q.
And Mr. Acord, how long have you been an employee at the Public Service Commission?
A.
Approximately 13 years.
Q.
And everybody has a copy of the Staff report and which I have already handed to the court reporter to be identified as Staff Exhibit Number One and I would like for that to be marked.



JUDGE GEORGE:


I've marked it as Staff Exhibit One.



(Staff Exhibit One marked for 



identification.)

BY ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:
Q.
And Mr. Acord, it's a 57-page report if I've calculated correctly and your purpose was doing the financial side to establish the rates.
A.
Correct.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Can you speak up just a little bit, Mr. Robertson?



ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


Okay.  Sure, not a problem.

BY ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:
Q.
And basically, from Charles Town's overall sewer operations, basically at per books and also what we call a going level that they have been running a deficit; is that ---?
A.
That's correct.

Q.
And basically, that meant looking at that and running that deficit to mean everybody had to basically incur an increase.
A.
Exactly.  Correct.
Q.
And going through what we did was you relied upon engineering allocation factors from Mr. Weimer ---.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Okay.  Can you quantify the amount of the deficit that they ran in the tests to your ---?
A.
Yes.  Page 43 of the Staff report, per books they were operating at a roughly $53,000 deficit.  Per books adjusted you're looking at roughly a $66,302 deficit and then as you go on to the going level, it's in excess of $300,000 for noted measurable increases.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Thank you.  

BY ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:
Q.
So in that result of looking at that deficit, everybody is going to have to pay somewhat more?
A.
Correct.
Q.
And basically, with Mr. Weimer, you took what we call, with his engineering allocation factors and we did go through, the Staff went through, to establish rates for residential, commercial and also the resale classes of customers?
A.
That's correct.

Q.
And basically, can you explain as what you did looking at, also from Mr. Coakley's information of what you did looking at the residential class, looking at the existing tariffs and looking at what the Staff proposed?
A.
Sure, exactly.  Under the existing scenario, the Charles Town sewer has approximately three separate sewer rate schedules.  They have sewer rates for what we'll refer to as the Charles Town core customers, they have sewer rates for the former Sanitary Associates customers and then they also have separate rates for the Tuscawilla area customers.  All three of the respective tariffs have different minimum bills based upon different consumption levels and thus different rates for 4,500 gallons.  As an example, the Charles Town core customers, their minimum bill is currently based on 2,500 gallons.  As far as Charles Town's core customers, the minimum bill is based on 2,500 gallons and they pay $12.13 a month for that.  Their average bill is based on 4,500 gallons and that comes out to $19.93.  If you look at the tariff schedule from Sanitary Associates, their minimum bill is $13.86 but it's based on 3,000 gallons and this equates out to a $20.79 bill based upon 4,500 gallons for Sanitary Associates.  The third tariff schedule is applicable to the area formerly served by Tuscawilla utilities and their minimum bill is $15.00, but it is based upon 4,000 gallons, which is a high minimum bill consumption and the bill for 4,500 gallons is $16.63.  


As we began the study, of course, after looking through all the operating costs, given the debt service, O&M, law requirements and so forth, we did a full-year bill analysis from each system.  We basically have about 13 pages of bill analysis which breaks it down for Charles Town monthly customers, Charles Town bi-monthly for both residential and commercial, we broke it down for Tuscawilla, for residential, commercial and also for Sanitary Associates residential and commercial as well.  In addition, we have a resale bill analysis essentially for the Staff recommendation one and the Staff-recommended number two.  We basically have used those as starting points to see exactly what each of the respective tariffs are generating as far as the revenues of Charles Town.  


Since Charles Town is the utility itself, we looked at consolidating those tariffs so that we gain a common scale.  Charles Town allocates their personnel and various expenses essentially to wherever it needs to go. If there's problems in Tuscawilla, that's paid through the rates just like, you know, the benefit for Sanitary Associates or Charles Town.  So when we started looking through, we felt that the most fair and equitable mechanism was a consolidation of the rates and also to basically establish a resale rate for the resale customers to bill away from this 1988 agreement, which had been utilized by the parties and basically allowed for more proper planning and for respective systems.  Obviously from our review, the Tuscawilla people do receive the largest increase because they have the lowest rates.  


Again, you know, while the increases generated on Staff's report audits can be substantial for certain consumption levels, for the customers using 2,000 gallons or less in Tuscawilla, I believe they're only seeing an approximately two percent increase.  So any of the customers on Tuscawilla's system using from zero gallons to 2,000 are only seeing a two percent increase.  The argument can be made that in the past, with the 4,000-gallon minimum, the Tuscawilla minimum-bill customers, which are typically on a fixed income, have been subsidizing the families with larger households.  So we felt it was more equitable to do so.  In a lot of cases, when you look at consolidating rates, there's always the argument, why should I have to pay for this amount when I'm not utilizing this respective service.  A lot of times that comes into account that you're a residential or commercial customer near the treatment facility.  They might say well, you know, I only need 100 foot of line to basically get my sewage to the treatment facility, why should I have to pay for the ten lift stations in the system and the 30 miles of lines?  You cannot establish separate rates for every customer.  It's not practical.  So what you have to look at is establishing costs for those respective customer classes, in this case, residential, commercial and resale.  And using the fact that in the study by Mr. Weimer in determining how those costs should be basically functionalized and allocated essentially to those customer classes.  At that point, rates are set to recover as close as possible the revenue requirements required by the cost of service study.  And I think the review that we've conducted is fair and equitable to all the parties.  Obviously, any time you go with consolidating rate schedules or even going away from a contract rate per se, the first initial review will be a hard hit because you're unifying different rates, you're unifying different block schedules, you're also unifying different minimum bills based upon the consumption level. So you know, what this will give the utility is basically a great planning tool for future needs as well as to handle the existing operations.  And thus everyone was treated --- if you're a residential customer, there's a problem in your respective area, you're treated exactly the same in Tuscawilla and Sanitary Associates as you are in the City of Charles Town.  Every customer, your needs will be addressed and that's what we attempted to do by establishing the respective rates in Staff-recommended number one.

Q.
In the Staff-recommended rates number one, looking at just the Charles Town customers, the whole residential class, because with the residential class now, the Staff proposal is just a minimum of 2,000 gallons; is that correct?
A.
That's correct.

Q.
So what we've done is we went with one --- I think the core system was 2,500 gallons ---

A.
Correct.
Q.
--- Sanitary Associates was 3,000 and we had Tuscawilla at 4,000.

A.
That's correct.

Q.
So we've tried to make that all to one comparison to where everybody is charged at at least a minimum of a 2,000-gallon minimum?
A.
That's correct, yes.
Q.
And so some people were going to have some increases, but in Tuscawilla's case, because they had a 4,000-gallon minimum, that has a little bit more of the increase going on the Tuscawilla customers?
A.
Exactly.  As far as the minimum bills, solely the Tuscawilla customers will see just a two-percent increase for consumption from zero to 2,000.  The Sanitary Associates area would see roughly a ten percent increase in rates from zero to 2,000 compared to what they're paying now and the Charles Town core customers will see a 26-percent increase in their bill, just because their minimum is one of the lower at this time.
Q.
Right.  But under the Staff's class cost of service study, we put all of those particular three rate schedules into one identifying unit, solely one residential class.

A.
That's correct.  Exactly.  That's correct.

Q.
And then we still also, for Charles Town, also have the commercial class, it's another class of customer?
A.
Correct.
Q.
And then the remaining one is the resale, which includes both the Jefferson County PSD and the City of Ranson?
A.
That's correct.  And as a total class, the residential class is seeing roughly a 47-percent increase in revenues, is what they're seeing as part of this review, the class itself.
Q.
All right.  And also with this then, based upon the study, commercial is also --- overall, the commercial customers are seeing an increase?
A.
Exactly. 
Q.
And then also with the group of both the District and the town of --- the City of Ranson, they're also incurring an increase because of the financial status of the sewer operations of Charles Town?
A.
Exactly.  Essentially, based upon the demands of the respective customer classes, everyone is sharing the burden for this necessary increase in costs.  As Ms. Arnett alluded to in her testimony, obviously, the water fund has been subsidizing the sewer operations.  


It's my opinion that, obviously, the sewer rates should have been increased years ago.  But in a lot of entities they choose not to do that for whatever reason. A lot of times with municipalities, it's politics.  Just because elected officials, if you increase rates, very likely you will not be re-elected.  


All people involved with this entity need to realize that they're doing a disservice to their customers if they do not do --- increase it as needed.  Because the first thing to suffer if you don't have necessary rates is your maintenance.  If your maintenance suffers then you might look at pump replacement versus just, you know, whatever the cost is to maintain that pump for that much longer.  Plus you're paying for debt service on an item which might be out of service now, you're looking at taking on additional debt service to basically replace it.  So it's very prudent to address, in a timely manner, increases.  And I'm hopeful that with this municipal appeal being a starting point that all the parties involved as far as the resale class and the residential and commercial will understand that with all of the problems facing the utility at this point, costs will increase in the future.  But with a larger customer base and being able to spread these costs amongst the respective customer classes, then everyone should pay their fair share.  And once the flow meters are in place and everyone is basically satisfied that they're reliable, then whoever is basically providing the I&I problem to the City's plant will pay the larger cost and if you are a resale customer and your I&I has been reduced, then obviously, you would benefit from that reduction.

Q.
All right.  The other thing is, too, with both at per books and going level, with Charles Town running in that particular deficit, they were also in what, technical default of their bond ordinance?
A.
Yes.  Their bond documents that they have for their respective issues typically require 115 percent coverage unless they're fully funded and most of them refer back to 110 percent.  But they weren't even close to the required coverage because they were running such a deficit in operation.  So it's imperative that that is maintained.  And you know, the utility we're looking at over a one-million dollar operation as it stands today and for them to basically handle the demands, you know, on an ongoing basis and emergencies that come up, they have to have funds available.  They are required for their bond document to have a two and a half percent R&R reserve.  Some call it a depreciation reserve.  You know, what's happened to them in the past is they put money in, they're taking it right back out.  I believe as of --- at the end of January, I think they had maybe just over $1,000 in that account and that's unheard of for a utility this size.



JUDGE GEORGE:


What coverage factors are there under the Staff-recommended one rates?
A.
Under the Staff-recommended number one rate, the coverage is 153.48 percent.



JUDGE GEORGE:


What about the other Staff-recommended rates?
A.
The other Staff-recommended, I have adjusted those numbers.  I can tell you real quick.  That will be part of this post-hearing exhibit.



JUDGE GEORGE:


You're going to reduce it?
A.
Yes.  The surplus amount would roughly stay the same, but what we're reducing is the percentage increase because with the alternative funding mechanism for the certificate case, we're basically looking at the debt service being absorbed by the $6.10 contribution or by the developer themselves.  In the Staff-recommended two position, as it will be adjusted, will only cover O&M and R&R.  So we're looking at maybe about $12,000 or $14,000 to be adjusted through the Staff-recommended two rates, is what's occurred.

BY ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:
Q.
And you're making reference to that agreement in the certificate case that was back in 04-0095 and that with that developer contribution, I know the Judge was in that case too, but that would be possibly the debt service contribution from Huntfield?
A.
That's correct.  Yes.  And in response to the Judge's question, with the revised Staff recommendation two, based upon the resale rate for Staff-recommended two being reduced from $450 to $371 and a 4.11 percent increase from Staff-recommended one rates for the Staff two, you're looking at $100,060 surplus, which would transfer to a 136.94-percent coverage.  So it's relatively the same.


JUDGE GEORGE:


Thank you.

A.
You're welcome.

BY ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:
Q.
One of the other things that you did in your financial calculations was looking at having Charles Town have about a surplus of about roughly $100,000.

A.
Exactly.
Q.
With that, can you explain a little bit of why that particular amount, because I know this is a growing area and things ---
A.
Sure.
Q.
--- if you could just elaborate on the surplus?
A.
Exactly.  As part of the surplus view, and Jim Weimer, the Staff engineer, had a lot to do with that as well.  We looked at what basically happened in the past. And again, they're looking at new projects, there's a lot of things going on.  We looked at the level as far as the revenues of the utility.  At going level, they're roughly a 1.1 million dollar operation.  At Staff-recommended, that takes them up to about a 1.5, almost a 1.6 million dollar operation.  And they have several lift stations, they have old collection lines in several of the areas, so there's a lot of needs that they're going to have.  Not to mention, the very least is the litigation, the Chesapeake Bay situation.  There's a lot of unknowns.  So based upon all those factors, we felt that on an average if they had roughly $100,000 as surplus they could handle their average additions plus needed improvements as needed.
Q.
So that's also looking at that it includes, meaning there's something, a little bit of a cushion somewhat for 

also uncertainties, looking at this age of the overall sewer system?
A.
Exactly because we can basically say that there's certain items that that $100,000 could be utilized for.  But in reality, it's up to the utility to decide how that's spent because there could be a major collection line failure which they need to replace immediately.  And thus, it would become a much higher priority and maybe another item they were looking at taking care of.  So roughly what we're looking at --- I think it comes out to about six percent of the Staff-recommended revenues is approximately the equivalent for the surplus. With the case which was recently done in the City of Ranson, which was also based on appeal, I believe in their case, their percentage quantified to about 37 percent.  And again, they're only roughly a $500,000 or $600,000 operation, if I'm correct.

Q.
I know we're submitting as a post-hearing exhibit the revised cash flow of the Staff-recommended rate number two.
A.
Correct.
Q.
Also the revised tariff schedule.  The other thing is, in any other associated documents, financial documents subject to their schedule A, some other documents, we're going to produce those all as 

post-hearing exhibits.  With that, do we have --- looking at a Staff recommendation, because that is the, I'll call it post-construction tariffs, looking at them when would be the implementation?
A.
It's my opinion that as far as the implementation of the Staff-recommended two rates, they could be done upon substantial completion of the certificate process itself, is my recommendation.  

Q.
One of the other things, usually, that the Judge actually asks in these particular cases, do you know also what a --- with the new combined rates for the City of Charles Town, what then a 4,500-gallon bill will be for sewer?
A.
Yes.  Under Staff's recommendation, the 4,500-gallon bill for sewer would be $29.05 and the Commission ranks utilities based upon ---.



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


What page are you referring to?
A.
Oh, I'm sorry.  It's attachment --- I'm looking at attachment three at this time.



ATTORNEY GLOVER:


Do you happen to have the Staff number?

A.
We're recommending the same rates for all so that any of the attachments will give you the respective percentages, actually.  The $29.05, as I 'm saying, we basically rank utilities based upon 4,500 gallons, because that's the national average.  And based upon that, and I do not have a current copy with me, but if my memory serves me correctly, for most sewer utilities, the average is probably $35 to $40.  If you look at the City of Ranson, their rates are very comparable to what we're recommending in this case, and they just recently had an increase as well.  The Jefferson County PSD, obviously their rates are much higher.  And again, those rates for them I think were established some time ago.  But the $29.05 was, by far, I would say on the lower half of the rates in the state.

BY ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:
Q.
At this particular time, Mr. Acord, is there anything else you wish to add to your testimony?
A.
No.


ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


Thank you.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Mr. Shingleton?

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:
Q.
If you would, I want to refer you to page 23 of the Staff report.

A.
Okay.
Q.
Which is the per-books tariff.  Up at the top, sheet three of four, the capacity improvement capital cost fee.
A.
Yes.
Q.
You recall the discussion yesterday, if you look over to page --- your pro forma and your Staff-recommended tariff, specifically look at page 29.

A.
Okay.
Q.
Is it true that the capacity improvement fee does not appear in your Staff-recommended?
A.
That's correct.  That was an oversight.
Q.
It's an oversight.  So that will be, it should be asserted immediately before the rest of the items identified, the residential usage equivalents?
A.
Correct.  We were looking at probably doing that as part of post-hearing because there was some discussion amongst myself and Mr. Robertson, relating to other cases where this level 27 has come up and the Commission is currently outstanding on a number of issues so we're trying to basically resolve, do we try to word it as such that upon the orders coming out in those respective cases that automatically, that language is adopted here for consistency, but I would probably have to defer to Mr. Robertson for that.
Q.
Did you make a calculation, the surplus of $100,000, approximately what percentage is that of the Staff-recommended tariff number one, what is the percentage of that to the total gross revenue?
A.
I would say probably a little over six percent.
Q.
And is that something that's within a range of acceptability in other West Virginia Public Service Commissions, for like utilities?
A.
Right.  Typically, we're not really looking at percentage per se, we're looking at the individual needs of the utility.  And certainly, with the 1.5 million dollar operation and a lot of things facing this particular utility, $100,000 is not unreasonable at all.
Q.
As I said, and just to put your words in a different way, this is a really high growth area with a lot of things happening?
A.
Sure.
Q.
Charles Town is required to expend funds sometimes on an unplanned basis to deal with some of these contingencies in this area; isn't that true?
A.
Exactly.  That's correct.
Q.
And even though those costs may eventually, if they're related to a project, may eventually be recaptured in a borrowing, you still have to have the cash flow in order to move forward with engineering reports and so forth; ---
A.
Yes.
Q.
--- isn't that true on a day-to-day basis?
A.
That's correct.  And that's essentially the problem that has led to the water fund being owed so much money, because the sewer rates were not sufficient to generate covering their costs of operation or the surplus.



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


I have no further questions.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Do you know if this utility is currently collecting its capacity improvement capital fee?
A.
They are.  I believe they're not reflected before, since the inception.



JUDGE GEORGE:


So it's a charge they're currently collecting?
A.
Correct, yes.  It was adopted years ago, so 

it's ---.



JUDGE GEORGE:


And does Staff have any problem with continuing to collect it?
A.
My personal opinion, no.  It's just basically the wording is essentially the issue.  Because with the City of Ranson case, the Staff recommendation, that case adopted the level 27 as well, but I believe there were some issues that came up maybe through to order or related to the order, so ---.


JUDGE GEORGE:


So Ranson has adopted a similar fee in its most recent ordinance?
A.
Yes.  Correct.



JUDGE GEORGE:


And that case is still pending before the Commission?
A.
The Ranson case, the rates were closed.  I really probably need to defer to Mr. Robertson because I was not directly related with any of the Ranson case.  I believe Mr. Robertson was.



ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


With that particular case, Your Honor, that case has been closed but there was a mechanism depending upon when the final Commission order came out to reflect that from the Commission's order, the final order and the pending cases.


JUDGE GEORGE:


Okay.  That's fine.  Mr. Glover?



ATTORNEY GLOVER:


Thank you, Your Honor.

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY ATTORNEY GLOVER:
Q.
Good morning, Mr. Acord. 
A.
Good morning.

Q.
Regarding your statement, I think that's page 

56 ---

A.
Okay.
Q.
--- I have a few questions.
A.
Sure.
Q.
The first line is the revenue required by the class cost of service study, residential class, you require 672,000,

A.
Correct.
Q.
In resale class, 684,000.

A.
That's correct.

Q.
And if I look the next line down, the revenue generated under the current rates, the residential customers is for 457,000 currently being generated?
A.
Right.
Q.
Meaning the efficiency in the revenue requirement is about 215,000 for the residential class?
A.
Correct, yes.
Q.
And what was the resale class --- what was being generated under, I guess, the 1988 Sewer Service Agreement was 508,000?
A.
Correct.
Q.
Meaning a deficiency of 175,000?
A.
Yes.
Q.
So just comparing those two classes, I guess the resale is getting closer to meeting the revenue requirements of the residential class through Charles Town; is that correct?
A.
I think that's probably fair to say, yes.
Q.
What percentage increase under the Staff-recommended one is the resale class going to have?
A.
Resale.  Let's see.  I believe the resale class as a whole is probably looking at --- because it's really hard to say because Ranson currently actually pays a little bit more to the District, so I would say a percentage, 26 percent, yours would be much lower than what the District's would actually be.  So I probably need to break it down in that aspect.  The City of Ranson is probably looking at roughly 11 percent and the Jefferson County PSD, again, it's a rough calculation, but they're probably looking at roughly 40 percent, but the 40 percent doesn't take into account the transportation credit, which reduces it down that much more.  So ultimately, it probably comes down to maybe a 27-percent increase for the District.
Q.
Which is added in?
A.
Exactly.



JUDGE GEORGE:


You spoke about the transportation credit and there's also a credit for a certain debt service the District ---?
A.
Right.  This case was very complicated in that in 2000 there was a treatment facility upgrade.



JUDGE GEORGE:


My concern is this.  Is there a mechanism that will end the credit for the debt service when the debt service is retired?
A.
That would be part of our recommendation, yes.  Right.



JUDGE GEORGE:


So is there some way that that works in the tariff or the order would say, upon expiration of this particular debt?
A.
Right.  And Staff has had a lot of discussions about this tariff issue because typically, you know, actually the credit should be on the tariff of the district.  It's actually a charge.  Say for Charles Town utilizing their lines ---.



JUDGE GEORGE:


For a transportation charge?

A.
Exactly.  Correct.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Okay.  But that's not what I'm talking about.  I'm talking about the charge related to the debt service.
A.
Okay.  For the $41,000?



JUDGE GEORGE:


Right.  But I mean, I'm assuming that that debt service has been entered into for 20 years, 30 years, 40 years, some set number of years.

A.
Right.



JUDGE GEORGE:


And I just wonder, is there some mechanism in the recommendation that when they actually pay off that debt that they don't continue to get the $41,000 in credit?

A.
Right.  We would probably need to maybe modify as part of our post-hearing a little clarification on that issue, but that certainly would be our recommendation that obviously, they're entitled to the credit as long as the debt is outstanding but once the debt would, you know, mature, then obviously, that would fall off, yes.

BY ATTORNEY GLOVER:
Q.
Okay.  And what you were talking about, transportation credit, we're kind of doing it backwards because usually we would have the transportation ---

A.
Exactly.

Q.
--- charge and the other utilities pay.
A.
Right.  And we went --- we had a lot of discussion on that issue because at first we were thinking, well, maybe the transportation credit shouldn't even be addressed in this case.  Maybe that's a case for the District to actually file to incorporate it into their tariff.  But then we thought, since we're going away from this contract for the most part, then we need to be fair to the resale to say while we're establishing the resale rate, you're also getting this credit so the net effect is X number of dollars.  And in the Morgantown case that the Commissioners had, they actually put into Morgantown's tariff a surcharge credit for the Scotts Run PSD, I believe.  That's something that our particular division isn't advocating and we think that those charges should be reflected in the District's tariff.  And you know, as part of our review, we certainly have built in those respective credits in realizing exactly how much money will be realized from the Jefferson County PSD because they are the ones directly receiving these credits, instead of, you know, Ranson is not receiving them.
Q.
And the transportation chunk of the credit, you'd use the same methodology that Staff's used in  Grafton, Morgantown, any place that has transportation charges for sewer or water?
A.
Essentially, and Mr. Weimer was very instrumental in determining the factors for this particular charge, so a lot of the document refers to him.  But essentially, we looked at the debt associated with these respective lift stations.  We also looked at the annual operating cost associated.  We broke it down into various factors and allocated those costs into the operations of Charles Town, which then become a factor as far as the operation and maintenance increase item that have to be built into rates to be recovered because it's an operating cost.  So we certainly are aware that Charles Town has benefited from this arrangement because all of the Sanitary Associates flows go through the District's system to get to the Charles Town facility.  And that's why we thought this was a good time to establish the credit.


JUDGE GEORGE:


Okay.  Very well.  Go ahead.

BY ATTORNEY GLOVER:
Q.
Just a couple more areas on the transportation issue.

A.
Sure.
Q.
To my understanding, I think everybody recognizes that Staff recommendation, I believe it’s 48 of this report, raising the issues of tariffs in the District, the District needs to charge a rate.
A.
Correct.
Q.
And I guess a complete average, the District will be justified in trying to incorporate into their tariff a transportation rate to charge Ranson for the lines that Ranson uses owned by the District.
A.
Certainly.
Q.
Likewise, Ranson would be justified in pursuing a transportation fee in its tariff to charge the District for the lines the District is using that are owned by Ranson.
A.
Certainly.
Q.
And that would complete the whole packet for transportation?
A.
Yes, exactly.



ATTORNEY GLOVER:


That's all I have.  Thank you.  



JUDGE GEORGE:


Thank you, Mr. Glover.  Mr. Kelsh?

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY ATTORNEY KELSH:
Q.
Yes, Mr. Acord, I'd like to refer you to the last page of your Staff report, page 57.

A.
Okay.
Q.
And at the beginning of this hearing, all Counsel had indicated that all the parties except Mr. Coakley had entered an agreement principle.  The phase or step two increase is less than what Staff had originally recommended.  We agreed on page 57 it shows the basic Staff --- the original step-two rate recommendation?
A.
That is correct, yes.  And this would be one page that would be revised after this hearing.
Q.
And on this page, you show $218,600 in debt service related to Charles Town's phase one project.

A.
Correct.
Q.
And the parties agreed that that debt service will be paid by the mechanism approved by the Commission in 04-0095?
A.
That's correct.



ATTORNEY KELSH:


Your Honor, I'd like for the Commission to take administrative notice of that case.



JUDGE GEORGE:


I'll put the parties on notice.  Notice that I'll take administrative notice of that proceeding.

BY ATTORNEY KELSH:
Q.
So the potential approach removes this debt service from rates?
A.
That's correct.

Q.
But it contains the O&M and R&R requirements that are contained on, I guess it's subparagraph three of page 57?
A.
That's correct, yes.
Q.
And it contains those possibilities for the O&M?
A.
Yes.
Q.
I'd like to refer you to page 14 of the transmittal letter.  In the first full paragraph on that page, sort of the middle of the paragraph, staff states that the credit would be for the resale class or allocated debt service associated with the Tuscawilla FM Bank land loan, FM Bank Sanitary Associates loan and the respective water fund loan established in this case.  
A.
Correct.
Q.
Can you refer me, in the financial schedules in this Staff report, where that credit was made?
A.
Yes.  If you refer to page number 52 of the Staff report and you look under, essentially, the resale column, you'll see a negative $78,131.
Q.
Okay.
A.
That $78,131 is made up of those respective ---. Let me back up.  The way that the study is allocated, all of the costs of the utility are allocated based upon factors, whether it be plain factors or factors that Mr. Weimer arrived at himself.  Actually, thus those four debts would have been allocated to all customer classes including resale.  After we go through, we figure out when did --- a calculation to determine exactly how much of this total debt service was actually allocated to the resale class as part of the study.  And based upon that, we then arrived at a direct credit to the resale class to take it back out so that it is noted as a fiscal amount with respect to transportation costs.

Q.
That's a number that's backed out before you arrive at the ---?
A.
At the rates.  That's correct.  Exactly.  

Q.
Let's just stay on page 52.

A.
Okay.
Q.
In the resale column further down there, there's a JCPSD debt credit of $41,411.

A.
Correct.
Q.
Now, that's a post-rate debt; yes?
A.
Right.
Q.
It is a post rate adjustment?


JUDGE GEORGE:


Post-construction, is that what ---?


ATTORNEY KELSH:


Well, no.  There is a --- this credit will be deducted.  The regulation board in Charles Town will take the District's water meter readings, multiply that by the rate $3.36 or $3.71 and then from that deduct a monthly or an annualized amount of about $41,000.

A.
Sir, I believe it's $34.51.  And the reason that this case is a little bit different from most is that typically, Charles Town would take out all the debt for everything involved.  As part of the 2000 upgrade, Charles Town essentially took out two-thirds of the amount that they needed and the District took out the other portion because they could get a much lower interest rate.  Thus, everyone saves money involved.  So if we would look at just their current operating costs as far as debt is concerned, we would be allocating debt to the District, which they're already basically absorbing themselves.  So as part of the review, this $41,411 was actually added into the debt as if Charles Town had all of the debt for the annual debt service.  Then we allocated through and then took it back out.  So thus, the District is receiving the benefit of them taking their own loan out for the treatment plant upgrades that they basically had to arrive at the respective amounts per the '88 agreement, is what's occurred.

Q.
And I'd like to refer you to schedule D, page 20 and is that --- is this where you try to indicate how this credit will work?
A.
Exactly.  That is correct.  Under the Staff recommendation number one, essentially the $3.36 rate would generate roughly $724,000 then the debt credit comes off of that total amount to reduce it down to the $348,981.  Then in addition to the $348,981, which I'm referenced in the report itself, the transportation credit could come off of that as well.  That basically takes that debt number down to roughly $300,000 for the debt service.

Q.
And Mr. Shingleton had a question for you about the tariff rate with respect to the impact fee?
A.
Yes.
Q.
Schedule or attachment D, the fee --- particularly the paragraph on that.

A.
Okay.

Q.
With regard to Tuscawilla Utilities?
A.
Correct.
Q.
The Tuscawilla Utility is no longer a utility regulated by the Commission?
A.
That's correct.

Q.
Should the fund for the Tuscawilla Utility be subject to the capital improvement fee?
A.
I would say yes because the language here was basically adopted from the ordinance that was proposed by the entity and actually, the Staff had a lot of discussion of this because it appears to be contradictory, you know.  In one aspect it's saying not certify Tuscawilla, then it goes on to say an applicable --- in the entire territory formerly served by Tuscawilla.  So as part of the Staff's post-hearing, we're going to amend the language to basically say applicable for all customers.


ATTORNEY KELSH:


Thank you.  That's all the questions I have.  



JUDGE GEORGE:


Mr. Coakley?



MR. COAKLEY:


A couple of questions.
CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. COAKLEY:
Q.
At the beginning of your testimony, you said that combining the rates that Staff recommended, combined rates would allow all citizens or all customers to receive maintenance as they needed it in a timely manner or something to that effect.  
A.
I believe what I was alluding to is that if there is a respective problem in one of the three areas, you know, whether it be Charles Town or the former Sanitary Associates or the former Tuscawilla Utilities area that basically the Charles Town operations would respond as, you know --- they wouldn't respond just because, you know, Tuscawilla is paying X number of dollars per 1000, they would respond because they need to address the problem.  And whatever the cost is to address the problem would be absorbed by all customers.  It wouldn't be solely this is a cost for Sanitary, this is a cost directly for Tuscawilla.  The entire customer base would benefit from that economy scale as far as the allocation of its expenses.
Q.
Okay.  Did the Staff do a breakdown or any kind of a breakdown of maintenance costs at the Tuscawilla plant versus Charles Town?
A.
I do not know.
Q.
Nothing at all?
A.
No, sir.
Q.
So with the combined rate recommended by Staff, is it possible that the Tuscawilla rate of pay for certain customers would be subsidizing the rest of the system, because of the rest of the system's higher maintenance costs?
A.
Right.  It's hard to say because first of all, there's not separate records for the respective three entities.  Number two, when we're looking at customers, we're looking at classes as far as residential and commercial for your respective area as well as Charles Town and Sanitary Associates.  So we're not looking at breaking down exactly what each customer should pay.  It's more like on an individual basis as far as, by example that if you're near the treatment facility, you shouldn't have to pay for the pumps.  Everyone benefits by having a large utility provide the treatment, you know, in compliance with all of the regulations and laws.  So thus, everyone shares in the costs of these operations and thus, you know, you would hope that it would be a fair rate that would allow for the costs of operations, be it operation and maintenance costs, bond requirements, requires surpluses or require service and also a sufficient surplus to address the improvements and you know, it's my understanding that a lot of the equipment being purchased and even the additional manpower, Tuscawilla will benefit from this and in the near future, it sounds like those other items will need to be addressed, but that's a separate matter.


JUDGE GEORGE:


Would you agree with me that right or wrong, as a general rule, the Commission favors unified rates?
A.
That is correct, yes.


JUDGE GEORGE:


And for instance, West Virginia American Water has the same rates for its customers in White Sulfur Springs and Weston and Huntington and Charleston and all over the state regardless of the fact that the Weston customers probably cost more than the Charleston customers?
A.
That's correct because the Weston distributing facility is millions, millions of dollars.


JUDGE GEORGE:


And what would happen without unified rates is that as new pockets of customers require new facilities such as new treatment plants, then their rates would be really high?
A.
Exactly.



JUDGE GEORGE:


But if you have unified rates, as a pocket of customers requires a new capacity improvement, a treatment plant, whatever, then their rates --- they don't get quite the rate shock?
A.
That's correct.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Because the whole system bears the cost?
A.
Exactly.  Essentially, the rates would go up but it would be an even approach across the board versus major improvements being required of Tuscawilla and then those customers being hit with a large surcharge.



JUDGE GEORGE:


And Ms. Arnett's theory of the game at least is that if you were made an exception to that general rule in this case and said that Tuscawilla could have its lower rates now, that in the long run, they'd get hurt because when they have the Chesapeake Bay standards and need new treatment facilities, that then they'd have a huge spike in their rates?
A.
Certainly.



JUDGE GEORGE:


And that was at least her theory of this.

A.
And that certainly could happen.



MR. COAKLEY:


No further questions.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Mr. Robertson?


ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


I have just a few questions, Your Honor, Mr. Acord's statement on that particular position looking at Tuscawilla.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:
Q.
Is it really then the basic concept is, looking at a bigger customer base, whether it's debt service, it's also in looking at the residential class as a whole is able to spread that cost out over the whole, residents, having more and more customers.  Does that present the general nutshell?
A.
Exactly.  I mean what we're looking at is there's one utility that's providing service to all customers, whether they be residential or commercial.  And while currently they do have three separate rates, they're trying to provide the level of service, I would hope, the same to any of the customers.  And it does allow to basically spread that cost over a larger customer base and thus limit the impact in the future as well as now.
Q.
I want to direct you also back on page 57.  



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


Fifty-seven (57)?



ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


Fifty-seven (57).  The last page of the report.

A.
Okay.

BY ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:
Q.
Could you just explain for the Judge --- I'm looking at, to get that $3.71, that resale rate at post-construction.  In subparagraph number three there, you have O&M and R&R.

A.
Yes.
Q.
So basically, where did those numbers come from?
A.
Right.  The O&M figure basically came from the certificate case itself.  And I believe it was roughly $104,000.  The difference between the $104,000 and the $112,000 and the $200 is the R&R increase per the new data on the revenue that's being generated.  When you look at page 57 and see that of that $112,000, 33 percent is being allocated to Charles Town, 67 percent to the resale class.  So essentially, the resale --- or I'm sorry, the residential/commercial rates need to be adjusted to raise an additional $37,000.  And by raising them roughly 4.11 percent, then you recover those monies, you know, from the residential/commercial.  For the resale class, they need to recover another $75,000.  And essentially, you take the $75,000 figure, divide that by minimum gallons, it breaks down to 35 cents additional.  So essentially, the calculation would change from $1.14 would be replaced with 35 cents and that would be added to $3.36 to come up with the $3.71 rate.  

Q.
And the reason that you did this with the O&M and the R&R reserve, because those were known and measurable costs?
A.
That's correct.  It's my understanding that as far --- the major increase is power as part of the certificate, the $104,000.  And that's going to be borne by the existing customers.  And the reason that we initially came up with the $4.50, is we took a worst-case scenario approach.  We basically said that if no development comes, then the existing customers have to pay for it.  And when we sort of were revising that in discussions with the parties, we --- you know, the consensus essentially said we didn't think that was fair, that actually the rates would be too high at this point, that by just adjusting for the O&M and R&R, which is the only measurable, the existing customers are paying what they should.  The agreement per the certificate case, which was recently approved, which you know, had the alternate financing mechanism with the capacity fees and the $6.10 per new customer bill and so forth, that would allow flexibility.  If in fact the revenues generated are not sufficient, then it falls back to Charles Town as, you know, having the rate control and all the rates in their tariff to pass another ordinance.  So thus it's imperative that Charles Town continually monitor their financial position so they can make adjustments as needed.  One other thing I'll mention is that we've also mentioned to all the parties that our assistance section can perform a cost of service study so that if they're ever looking at an increase of rates, if they request that service be done, then this study would be done and all the parties would be aware of exactly where the Staff would be leaning should this become a municipal appeal.

Q.
Right.  And at least under --- you would possibly have a part in that even though you're not formally assigned to the assistance section?
A.
Correct.  I would work with the respective manager in that section and we would make sure that, you know, everything was looked at and was thorough.
Q.
And it would be then consistent, looking at what you've done in this ---

A.
Correct.
Q.
--- because I mean, we know, everybody knows that this has been a complicated venture.
A.
Sure.
Q.
The one other thing I want to ask you about is looking at --- I'll say the total debt credit or looking at the ---.  It's roughly $3,451, which would be a monthly debt service credit on the Jefferson County PSD's monthly bill that they get sent from Charles Town.

A.
Uh-huh (yes).
Q.
Have you thought as to how Staff's going to address that, whether that's going to be in the Charles Town tariff or is that going to possibly be 

something ---?
A.
That's an excellent question.  There's been some preliminary discussions and again, there's some certain things I need to run by my manager and also my director, but you know, at first we're looking at that the District should have a lot of these as part of their tariff item. 

But in relation to that particular credit, you know, it might be beneficial to have it, you know, specifically address the Charles Town's because it's a little different than the transportation credit we're dealing with.  It's sort of a ---.
Q.
And do you think this is more similar to the illustration that the Commission approved at Scotts Run, because that one as I understand it was for a contribution that they put into the plant?  This is somewhat ---.



JUDGE GEORGE:


It was in the Morgantown Utility Board case.
A.
Yes.



JUDGE GEORGE:


It's still in the vapors; isn't it?  I mean, it's still somehow ---.
A.
Right.  It's still ongoing at this point.  There were --- I'm not sure of exactly all of the issues.  I think there were really a few small issues to be resolved in that case, but I don't believe that the credit is an issue at this point.  Again, that's something we can sort of check.
BY ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:
Q.
But we're not disregarding it, we're just trying to figure out from a Staff perspective what proper tariff to put it in and then have a very good explanation as to the particular debt.  What's the expiration of the debt and other things that we can address in the post-hearing exhibits?
A.
Exactly.  I think all parties are in agreement that it's needed, it's part of our review to get an accurate picture, it has to be included some.  It's just trying to figure out the proper format, whether it be in Charles Town's tariff or the District's tariff, and that's something we certainly can clarify.

Q.
That and also before filing the post-hearing exhibits, we can also talk to the other parties to see if that all sort of makes sense with the other parties involved, the other three utilities.
A.
Certainly, certainly.



ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Acord.  I have no further questions, Your Honor.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Mr. Shingleton?



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


No further questions, Your Honor.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Mr. Glover?



ATTORNEY GLOVER:


No questions, Your Honor.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Mr. Kelsh?



ATTORNEY KELSH:


No questions.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Mr. Coakley?



MR. COAKLEY:


No questions.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Let's take a lunch break.

LUNCH BREAK TAKEN



JUDGE GEORGE:


Mr. Robertson, you may call your next witness.



ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


Yes, the other witness --- the witness that I'd like to call is Mr. Jim Weimer.

---------------------------------------------------------

JAMES WEIMER, HAVING FIRST BEEN DULY SWORN, TESTIFIED AS FOLLOWS:

---------------------------------------------------------

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:
Q.
Could you please state your name for the record and also give your position at the Public Service Commission?
A.
My name is James Weimer and I am an engineer in the Engineering Division of the West Virginia Public Service Commission.
Q.
And also, in concert with Mr. Acord, you were also involved in preparing the 57-page report known as a Staff report in this case?
A.
Yes, I was.
Q.
Looking at that, could you actually explain looking at --- for the current rates of Charles Town, also looking at the resale rate, looking at particular items that you've done, looking at the age of the Charles Town system, the cost of the I&I, all of the things that you had recommended in your perspective of reviewing equipment purchases, maintenance people, other things of that, if you could just elaborate on the certain things that you --- from a technical viewpoint ---?
A.
Sure.  Certainly.  During the course of any rate review, Engineering Division generally goes out and takes a look at the entire system and how it's operating, if it's meeting all its regulatory requirements from other agencies, meeting all the regulatory requirements of the Public Service Commission.  And one of the things we look at is the physical aspects of the system and how they're being operated and maintained by the utility.  I think it was noted earlier in testimony, this particular system, while it has tolerated relatively well considering the fact that it's been extremely under funded, there are a lot of things that weren't happening in terms of maintenance programs that, at least in my view, should be done in order to --- so that the operator has a good idea of what the condition of his utility is and his ability to anticipate future problems and future needs of the utility.  They also have --- this particular utility, has a high BOD problem and an inflow and infiltration problem which exists with the utility.  There was very little effort underway, I think for several years, to try and identify and correct both of those problems.  So in the course of the review, you've heard some discussion here about there's equipment been ordered for I&I studies which will eventually lead to hopefully shortly I&I reduction programs and repairs.  In addition, the BOD issue which exists in the system has to be identified.  One of the ---.

Q.
Let me interrupt you there, Mr. Weimer.  Looking at the BOD itself, is that primarily concentrated in the Charles Town system, or is that system-wide, meaning Charles Town's system, Ranson's and the District's system, as far as you can tell?
A.
Well, there's no definitive data, but I believe, based on what I've seen in other systems, that it's probably system-wide.  It's a system-wide issue and one of the recommendations, of course, that I made was that they establish a program to inspect all the grease traps of all the restaurants.  And I would certainly hope that all of the other utilities with commercial establishments do the same.  I often find in many utilities that don't have those programs that if you go out and look at the restaurant grease traps, which are mandated by the county health departments, that they usually haven't been cleaned for sometimes years and they're discharging directly into the sewers a lot of high BOD materials as well as creating a problem, odor problem in the areas.  So those utilities which do have an ongoing program, oftentimes when I inspect all of the grease traps with them, they're usually in relatively good condition.  Now, it's not a mandatory requirement by DEP for the utilities to do that, because the health department is supposed to enforce that regulation.  But it's in the interest of the utility to at least look to know what's happening in their system so that they can alert the customers that they need to take up some action.  


And the other thing is that affects the lift stations.  Certainly, I saw Charles Town, unfortunately, doesn't have a whole lot of lift stations.  But there was grease noted in a couple of them and therefore, having a program like that would help keep those lift stations in good condition.  And one of the other things that I noted was they don't have any equipment to effectively clean lift stations and manholes, again, which helps prevent possible plugs in the system, so we recommended that as one of the recommendations to help system maintenance, that they order a Vactor truck, which a lot of the larger utilities have and I understand ---.  The other discussion going on is one of the other utilities would probably have an interest in borrowing that for their own maintenance, which I think would be a good idea because I often encourage the sharing of utilities' equipment with neighboring utilities whenever that's possible.  In this case, it's very possible.  



JUDGE GEORGE:


Mr. Weimer, you have numerous recommendations that you believe the utility should undertake in purchasing a Vactor truck and implementing a grease trap inspection program.  How many of those do you think is necessary to be ordered that they do?
A.
Of all the recommendations, I think they all need to be ordered.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Okay.
A.
Because part of --- at least one of the things that I noted was they ---.  As I think you heard from the national analyst, the utility itself had been very under funded for a long period of time and as a result, none of these programs were very active.  They needed to be active in order to properly maintain the system, particularly in this extremely sensitive environment to the Chesapeake Bay and in order to protect the plant so that they don't have discharges which might lead to future violations.  I think those are necessary programs and I would certainly encourage them to be awarded as part of this case so that, first of all that notes that it is in fact a responsibility of the utility ongoing and as time passes, those responsibilities don't get forgotten as monetary --- other monetary needs may crop up.  So they know that that is, in fact, a utility responsibility.  


In addition to those, of course with the I&I program, they have a camera, but they don't really have the manpower to utilize fully that asset.  They don't have a way to transport that asset so they can 

do --- relatively quickly move from place to place to do inspections.  So that was the reason that we --- one of the reasons we put in the additional employees as needed to do some of this investigative work and a vehicle in order to transport the equipment.  And in fact, I have even recommended --- didn't recommend they purchase immediately, but that they purchase sometime in the future a tractor-style camera with the ability to go up and look in the laterals because that may be another issue at some other point in time that they do some additional investigative work to finally tie down I&I problems and potential system problems.

BY ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:
Q.
All right.  And let me ask you this.  I believe on page 5 of your report you had a mention of dry weather flows for the Charles Town and also the Tuscawilla plant as a total.

A.
Yes.
Q.
And also you had wet weather flows and it's a pretty dramatic increase when you look at --- I believe you had 30 million gallons of dry weather flows then it went up to 44 million gallons.  That shows tremendous I&I in your opinion?
A.
Well, it's much higher than we'd like to see.  In terms of other utilities in the state, it's not tremendous.  But in terms of the utilities with much newer lines, it's significantly greater.



JUDGE GEORGE:


And it does demonstrate a problem with the Tuscawilla system though; right?
A.
Yes.  There was a --- just a comment made about I&I and Tuscawilla at some other point by some other witness.  Again, there is a flow meter on the plant, we had metered water, so we were able to determine approximately what the I&I contribution is at Tuscawilla.



JUDGE GEORGE:


And what do you believe that number to be?
A.
It's about 37 percent, so it's --- if you look at the ---.



JUDGE GEORGE:


It's not outrageously high?
A.
No.  But if you look at the analysis based on some very limited information, Tuscawilla, Ranson and Charles Town have very similar I&I contributions, sewer plant flows.  So therefore, it's an issue that's system-wide that Charles Town really needs to evaluate.


JUDGE GEORGE:


And what issues --- and you may be the wrong witness to ask, but Staff's recommending that they renegotiate the old, is it '88, contract and you've taken the rates out of the '88 contract.  What other issues are going to be left in that contract, if you know ---?
A.
Well, I believe the only amendment which is going to deal with the certificate funding is one rate and then I think there's probably something to deal with what flow would be available for what period of time to the utilities.  I'm not certain of what all the issues are.  They are very limited because of the --- now that Charles Town will be basically an independent provider, it's basically just a contract for services like any utility --- other utility contracts where it says we have X number of capacity available and you may use a certain amount of that capacity and we'll provide as needed any increase in capacity.  So I mean, it's not --- I don't believe there has to be much if any at all the '88 agreement put in the new contract other than to stipulate that they are resale customers and they'll be billed a certain resale rate for flows up to a certain amount currently and up to whatever is needed in the future.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Okay.  Go ahead, Mr. Robertson.  



ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


Okay.

BY ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:
Q.
In relationship to looking at the particular I&I, could you just explain to the Judge of --- because of, I guess right now you're concerned I guess with the unreliability of the sewage flow meters that are placed throughout the three sewer utilities system.  Can you just summarize what you did with billed water and how you then, looking at the allocations that you may have ---.
A.
Okay.  If you want to get back to the allocations, because the flow meter information goes back to more than just flow meter, part of the issue is identification of what customers were being served by what lines and who owned those lines.  There is a generalized system outline.  It was done when they did an I&I study back in I think '96, '97, '98 where they identified who owned what lines and manholes.  That outlined drawing as it turns out has many errors in it which call ownership of different lines and manholes which are really owned by another party.  And there are areas within --- specific areas of residences within areas which are going through flow meters which are allocated to one utility without subtracting the flows of those residences owned by another utility.  So there is a lot of information that has to be adjusted and corrected to make the flows correct, plus the basic fact that the flow meters weren't even reading properly when they were first installed.  So there was --- all of those issues are slowly being corrected and they have said that December was the first month where they thought they had relatively accurate readings.  I'm not certain that that's entirely correct.  There's probably some other small adjustments that had to be made as the utilities work out where these pockets of customers are and who owns what lines.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Did the '88 agreement anticipated sewer flow meters?
A.
Yes, it did.



JUDGE GEORGE:


And here we sit 17 years later and we don't have sewer flow meters?
A.
That's correct.



JUDGE GEORGE:


And why do you think that is?
A.
I'd have to let the utility answer that question.  Apparently, I would guess ---.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Do you think there's a risk that I'll come back 17 years from now and we still won't have sewer flow meters?
A.
I don't think so.  One of the things that I think I alluded to in the discussion is that Charles Town really needs to be responsible for these meters.  As far as who reads them, I would certainly recommend that Charles Town not only read the meters but they also own all the meters because our rules require that the provider of services bill through a resale meter that he owns.  We've had some informal discussions about how that might happen between the utilities since we finally had flow meters installed within the system.  And I think the utilities are probably amenable to working out some sort of an arrangement where that will happen.  But Charles Town as the provider needs to really know what that --- that the information is correct, they'd be responsible for calibration and be responsible for the reading of those meters.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Would you agree with me that sewer flow meters are the most appropriate way to bill if you're going to have sewer resale customers?
A.
Yes, they are.  We often run into problems in utilities where they're estimating flows based on the customers and estimating I&I and estimating flows based on pump station times.  And I've even discovered in the course of this that major flows from pump stations didn't agree with design flows from those pump stations.  I mean, there's a whole broad range of inaccuracies that really need to be removed from the billing process and the flow meters certainly are the only way I know how to do that.


JUDGE GEORGE:


But you think as we stand here today, there's no way we can have anything but rates based on water meter readings?
A.
I would not recommend anything but rates based on water meter readings for several reasons.  One is that's the only issue we know accurately.


JUDGE GEORGE:


And how are we going to transform this duck into a goose eventually?  How do we get there?
A.
Well, in the studies that we did, and we've done this in other places, we look at metered water only and how the allocation factors fall with using metered water only.  We compare that with a normal analysis where we use metered water or we use actual sewage flows which include I&I.  And as part of the process, resale customers are responsible to pay for part of the I&I for the provider system because they use a certain portion of the provider system.  Whenever we do that analysis, which we did in this case as well, the factors turn out very similar, very close, within a couple percent.  So there is --- while there is certainly --- it's not precise, as a first guess for establishing what is believed to be a fair and reasonable rate for all the parties involved, I think that's probably the most satisfactory way to do it.


JUDGE GEORGE:


So you believe we're stuck until the next rate case?
A.
I think we're stuck until we have at least a year's worth of accurate data and whatever that time is. And I don't see anybody being penalized because again, the analyses show that strictly metered water consumption to establish factors as opposed to going through what was believed to be estimated sewage flows and estimated I&I numbers and allocation of I&I to the resale customers provided numbers very similar.  So I don't think anybody is being hurt and it's a good way to get the system up and running.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Go ahead, Mr. Robertson.
BY ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:
Q.
So looking at the metered water billings, you're saying that that's a good starting point to move forward?
A.
Yes.
Q.
Okay.  And also just for the Judge's reference, that comparison of looking at those references and with the metered water usage is on page 46 of your report?
A.
Yes.
Q.
I just wanted to make that for the Judge's reference so if he needed to go back to that that was done on your report on page 46.
A.
Yes, that's correct.  That shows the comparison between the use of metered water only to establish factors and the use of the allocation of I&I based on what I believe to be --- and I'll just, even though further explanation, the most accurate flow meter readings establish a percentage of contribution of flow relative between the utilities.  That relative percentage is what was used to establish what the actual flows were based on --- we know what the plant flow is and that was the basis for establishing ---.  And if you look at the customer numbers, the customer numbers track pretty closely to those contribution percentages, so I mean it all appears to match up pretty well even though it's not perfect.  And therefore, we believed that was the best analysis to provide the financial picture to the Commission.



JUDGE GEORGE:


So if it all appears to match up relatively well and it appears that the I&I problem at Ranson and the I&I problem with the District and the I&I problem with the Charles Town system is relatively similar, then why not take the plunge and just, you 

know ---?
A.
Well, the only difference is that the plunge that I would take would be based on assumed information rather than precise information.  And I always have the danger of something being different than I believe it is, you know, the old assume issue.  



JUDGE GEORGE:


Go ahead, Mr. Robertson.


ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


Okay.

BY ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:
Q.
Mr. Weimer, starting --- looking at the starting point with the billed --- the meter, water meter readings, then possibly what would you say from a Staff recommendation, what would be sort of your plan of action from that point going into the future?
A.
Well, certainly I think that between now, since there should be really, in my view, at least 12 good months, 12 good months of solid, accurate data.  Since we've already recommended they install some additional metering, that should complete all the metering needs and hopefully by the time the meter is installed or at least by the time possibly that the test year begins, the next test year upcoming, all the meter problems will be solved and we can have one full test year of data, which can then be applied to the next analysis in a formal class cost of service study to see how much that impacts the actual factors and therefore the actual distribution of costs and the final rate.

Q.
So then one of the things would be looking at the acquisition for the sewage flow meter for Sanitary Associates being installed?
A.
That's correct.
Q.
Looking at that, so you're looking at 12 months of data.  I guess it would be possibly preferable to have that run with also a fiscal year, starting like at July 1, 2005?
A.
Yes.  Complete fiscal year for all the utilities.
Q.
Right.  So that would be running from July 1 of 2005 up to June 30th of 2006?
A.
That's correct.

Q.
So that would be something that should be achievable in your opinion?
A.
Yes, at least from what I see it looks like it's achievable.  I'm not certain how the utilities --- but I mean there's certainly an incentive now on the part of the City to have accurate numbers.  I think they now have, with the establishment of a resale rate, obligation now to start controlling costs and planning for future expansions.  And certainly, if I could reduce the I&I component, I may not --- I may be able to use some of my existing capacity rather than add new capacity, so ---.

Q.
Regarding the sewage flow meters, is there anything else you'd like to add regarding the sewer flow meters or any other testimony at this time?
A.
Nothing in regard, other than the fact that I just want to stress, I think the City needs to own those meters and be responsible for reading the calibration.

Q.
Right.  But then if the other two utilities wanted to, in concert of the town, the City of Charles Town, read those meters, then that would also probably be advisable to have a representative from Ranson and also the District when they read those flow meters so they can confirm the actual reading?
A.
Well, certainly.  I think the data should be available to all the utilities.  They can either apply the data when the meters are read or ask the City to provide the data after the reading.



ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


Thank you, Mr. Weimer.  I have no further questions, Your Honor.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Mr. Shingleton?



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


No questions, Your Honor.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Mr. Glover?



ATTORNEY GLOVER:


Just a couple.

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY ATTORNEY GLOVER:
Q.
Mr. Weimer, of six meters, the District owns four, Ranson owns one, Charles Town owns one, is that the breakdown?
A.
I believe that's going to break down to ---.  Now, I don't know whether all six meters would necessarily have to be owned by Charles Town.  I think the entry points --- I'm just trying to review in my mind where the meters are located.  I think some are within the Ranson and Charles --- Ranson/Jefferson County PSD system.  The meters that are specifically contributing flows into the Charles Town lines are the ones that they would have direct responsibility for.

Q.
So as you sit here today, the meters are the ones that ---
A.
Yes.  There are six meters ---.

Q.
--- those meters are to be owned by Charles Town or not?

A.
Yes.



ATTORNEY GLOVER:


That's all I have.

A.
Again, that map that shows the meter locations 

--- and they've been moved from proposed to revised, I think four of them are contributors directly to Charles Town.  



ATTORNEY GLOVER:


Thank you.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Mr. Kelsh?



ATTORNEY KELSH:


Yes.

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY ATTORNEY KELSH:
Q.
Mr. Weimer, on page 47 of the Staff report, did you calculate I&I for Tuscawilla and Ranson and the District system and Charles Town system?
A.
Yes.  I used the calculated and estimated I&I for Charles Town, Ranson and the District based on, again, a percentage breakdown from most accurate flow meter readings, applied that to the current flow, back-calculated that to an actual sewage flow and compared that to metered water, adjusted the metered water to come up with an estimated I&I for those readings.
Q.
And you say estimated.  You don't have firm compliments of those numbers; do you?
A.
Well, I have the I&I.  They're not accurate, but they're probably close.  So I wouldn't say they're --- I'm not going to say and stipulate that they're entirely accurate because we don't have the breakdown.

Q.
All right.  There's a lot of discussion about inflow and infiltration and trying to address that and improve it.  How does reading water meters on a monthly basis enhance an I&I identification program?
A.
Well, remember --- particularly with the portable meters that we recommended, reading a part of the system and I do over a one-month period if I'm looking for that, depending on how I decide I'm going to handle my program, certainly being able to compare that with an actual metered water reading which I then allocate to that flow, it makes it much easier and timely, less time-consuming, to make estimates on where the I&I is coming from.  But that isn’t always the case because if I had to leave it in --- a flow meter in a specific location for four or five months to evaluate what might happen during rainfall.  So I don't know exactly --- certainly, it's good and I would like to see it that way, but all it does is affect how I arrange my studies and how much real accuracy I get from the studies, I think would be the ultimate objective for this one or two percent difference or four or five percent difference.



JUDGE GEORGE:


And if I understand what you're saying correctly, it has to do with how long you have to leave your portable flow meter in the ground?
A.
Well, I think there's two things.  If I have a particularly wet period and I go out and put a meter in and I can get the exact meter water reading for that very wet period, I don't have to leave it there a month to make it an I&I evaluation.  If I have a wet month followed by a dry month, I've had to leave it there for two months and if I'm reading on a two-month basis, then I'd still have an accurate reading of what I&I was, but again, that's how the study is put together and how well you --- how quickly you can evaluate the data I think its probably the most important factor.  It would certainly help finding it sooner, I think, if you had monthly bills to compare it to, but I don't know that it would be an absolute necessity.  I'd like to see it done that way.  We always like to see monthly readings, water meter readings.

BY ATTORNEY KELSH:
Q.
I'd like to refer you to page 16 of the transmittal order.  

A.
Yes.
Q.
Your recommendation on the flow on the period on that page, Staff recommended semi annual report to outline the progress of the recommended spending plan, field maintenance activities and plant mineral testing.
A.
Yes.

Q.
Who should that report be sent to?
A.
The Public Service Commission.
Q.
Okay.  So that report would also be made available to the other parties in this case?
A.
It's public information.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Well, there's a difference, though.  I mean, should it be sent to them or should it just be ---? If it's filed at the Commission, obviously the Charleston Gazette or Tom Jones or whoever can go down and get it, but ---.
A.
Well, I think it's a matter of ---.  As a matter of cooperation and courtesy, I think ---.  And since all the resellers have a definite interest in what's happening in Charles Town, they should be provided copies.  And I think Charles Town probably would have done that anyway.



ATTORNEY KELSH:


That's all the questions I have for this witness.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Mr. Coakley?



MR. COAKLEY:


A couple of questions.  

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. COAKLEY:
Q.
When you said there is a flow meter at the Tuscawilla waste treatment plant, I know under normal circumstances, flow meters measure inflow into the plant, that is correct, the normal ---?
A.
What they're doing is, they're usually outflow meters on the discharge of the plant where all the flows are measured.
Q.
Okay.  So this particular meter is on the discharge end?
A.
Yes.
Q.
Isn't it true that there's three or four open lagoons in that system?
A.
Yes.
Q.
That are open to the weather, to the sky and the rain?
A.
Yes.
Q.
Could it be possible that the supposed I&I received is coming from rainfall into those lagoons?
A.
I think that's the same as most of all the treatment plants.  Yes, it is possible.
Q.
In other words, without the meter being on the inflow side, you cannot be sure that there is actually any true I&I in the system other than that system takes something.  That 35 to 37 percent you were quoting could be misleading?
A.
I seriously doubt that with the parties involved that that would be misleading.



JUDGE GEORGE:


You would calculate it though; right?  You would get whether rainfall ---.
A.
You can estimate the weather and its effects.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Rainfall statistics from the National Weather Service.
A.
Yes.



JUDGE GEORGE:


You know how many square feet is exposed of the lagoons, you can run it through a formula and there you've got it?
A.
Yeah.  I don't think that it would be a significant contributor.  Because I know from talking to the plant operators, there are times whenever the flow is coming into the plant and whatever reasons have created overflow problems in the lagoons and that's probably more than just local rainfall that's creating that.  It's probably a combination of what's coming in, directly through rainfall and what's coming in through the system lines.

BY MR. COAKLEY:
Q.
Okay.  I do have information but since I don't have a witness here, I really can't --- extend the certain circumstances when they flow to certain places.  

A.
And one of the things that --- normally, if we would have had --- this was actually a very complicated case done in a very, relatively short period of time.  With more time, I would probably have been able to provide you with better information, look at every square inch of what's happened in the utility, but time just simply didn't permit it.



MR. COAKLEY:


Okay.  I have no further questions.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Redirect, Mr. Robertson?



ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


I have none, Your Honor.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Very well.  You may step aside.  Do you have additional evidence, Mr. Robertson?



ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


No, Your Honor.  That concludes the Staff's presentation of its case and I would ask at this time that the Staff exhibit that's been identified as Staff Exhibit Number One be moved into the record.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Any objection to the admission into evidence of Staff Exhibit One?



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


None.



ATTORNEY GLOVER:


No objection.



JUDGE GEORGE:


It's admitted into evidence and I'm admitting City Exhibit One as well ---



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


Thank you.



JUDGE GEORGE:


--- which is the certificate of publication for this hearing.  Mr. Glover, you have witnesses?



ATTORNEY GLOVER:


I have no witnesses, Your Honor.



ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


Your Honor, one other thing I would like to make, Staff will be still filing the post-hearing exhibit by March, as my calculations, March 15th.  And also, I just would like to state on the record at this time.  I know Mr. Weimer and Mr. Acord did a lot of information processed and everything in a short period of time and I just wanted to have them recognized on the record for a report well done.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Robertson.  Mr. Kelsh, do you have witnesses?



ATTORNEY KELSH:


Yes.  Let's call Barbara Pichot, the District's first witness.

---------------------------------------------------------

BARBARA PICHOT, HAVING FIRST BEEN DULY SWORN, TESTIFIED AS FOLLOWS:

---------------------------------------------------------



JUDGE GEORGE:


Could you spell your name for me?
A.
P-I-C-H-O-T.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Thank you.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY ATTORNEY KELSH:
Q.
Ms. Pichot, are you a certified public accountant?
A.
Yes, I am.
Q.
And do you prepare the annual report and financial statements for the District?
A.
Yes, I do.
Q.
I want to talk to you about, first about the various credits which Staff recommended in this case, just so everyone is clear about it.  I'd like to refer you to Exhibit D, page 20 of Staff report.  Do you have that in front of you?
A.
Yes, I do.
Q.
Under both these, Staff recommended one and Staff recommended two, it's indicated that there is a debt credit of $41,411.28.  Do you see that?
A.
Yes, I do.
Q.
All right.  And that is to be deducted from the District's bill after the amounts are multiplied by the rate which the parties have agreed to.
A.
Yes.
Q.
In addition to that credit, below that there's a note.  Below Staff recommended one, there's a note, there's a transportation credit of $1.65 per thousand gallons and that's for the transportation from Sanitary Associates to the Charles Town plant?
A.
That's my understanding, yes.
Q.
Is that the limit of the credit related to the system and the transports, waste water flows from Charles Town Sanitary Associates system through the District system and then to the Charles Town treatment plant?
A.
No.  It's my understanding from the exhibit there's an additional $12,104 annual credit that is related to fixed debt costs.
Q.
Okay.
A.
So that the total would be $40,447 additional credit.
Q.
Okay.  I'd like to refer you to page 50.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Would you repeat that number for me, $40,000 ---?
A.
$447.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Okay.  And that's associated with fixed costs and transportation ---.
A.
Associated with fixed debt costs plus the transportation credit.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Are they two pieces of the Sanitary Associates transportation issue?



ATTORNEY KELSH:


Judge, I'll get there eventually.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Okay.  Okay.  Because I'm confused.  I hate to be confused.
BY ATTORNEY KELSH:
Q.
I'd like to refer you to page --- I guess it's exhibit Tab E, page 50.  



ATTORNEY KELSH:


I'll wait for the Judge to get to ---.



JUDGE GEORGE:


I don't seem to have a Tab E.



ATTORNEY KELSH:


It is the calculation ---.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Okay.  I see it.  Okay.  I’m there.

BY ATTORNEY KELSH:
Q.
And at the top of this page, there's a calculation of the allocated debt service fixed; do you see that?
A.
Yes.
Q.
And is that for $1,009 per month up front?
A.
That's correct.
Q.
And this is --- there's two prior PSC cases referenced above that total; correct?
A.
Correct.
Q.
And those are the cases in which the District built the pump stations that are used to transmit the wastewater from Sanitary Associates to the Charles Town wastewater treatment plant?
A.
That's correct.

Q.
And that's the basis for the debt service credit?
A.
Yes.
Q.
And then below that we have the O&M expenses associated with transmitting the wastewater from Sanitary Associates to the Charles Town plant; correct?
A.
Yes.
Q.
And the O&M is collecting --- allocated collection expense, allocated pumping expense; right?
A.
Yes.
Q.
And those two items total $28,343.02?
A.
Yes.
Q.
And that's how we get the $1.65 per thousand gallons?
A.
Yes.


ATTORNEY KELSH:


All right.  Is the Judge clear now?  I'll move on to the next item.



JUDGE GEORGE:


I think I'm better off now.



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


Your Honor, I would point out that he said it's a different matter, but this was covered by Mr. Acord and I don't think what you're saying is contradictory to what before was said.



ATTORNEY KELSH:


No, it's in the nature of clarification.



JUDGE GEORGE:


And to be frank, it's helpful because I was under the impression that the $1.65 transportation rate was the whole ball of wax, which I've never seen a transportation rate that had anything other than a per-gallonage rate before.  And I had inquired of the witness as to whether this was standard methodology like the other rates that I'm familiar with.  And you know, I've never seen anything like that before, so ---.

BY ATTORNEY KELSH:
Q.
And just to show, the District's --- well, okay. What Staff has done is they've separated O&M from capital costs; haven't they?
A.
Yes.
Q.
And one benefit of that approach is going to be that if the flows are too high or too low and ---?  Well, let me explain that.  Now, in theory, it would be to tack on --- you know, to include capital costs with the O&M and to have a volumetric rate that recovers the transportation fee; right?
A.
Yes.
Q.
If you do that, though, the volumes aren't as you predict, the District could either under recover or over recover its capital costs?
A.
Correct.
Q.
The way Staff had done it, the District exactly recovered its capital costs; right?
A.
That's correct.

Q.
And the only other costs fluctuated was volumes that go through; right?
A.
Yes.
Q.
And so this should be more accurate then?
A.
I would think so, yes.


JUDGE GEORGE:


Do you know when the recovery for the fixed debt should expire?
A.
That is a 40-year note that was issued in 1998. Forty (40)-year bond.  Excuse me.  It was issued in 1998.

BY ATTORNEY KELSH:
Q.
Ms. Pichot, have you prepared an analysis of the rate impact of the rates we're discussing today?
A.
Yes, I have.


ATTORNEY KELSH:


I'd like to have this marked as District Exhibit Number One.



JUDGE GEORGE:


I'm marking it PSD Exhibit One.



(PSD Exhibit One marked for 



identification.)

BY ATTORNEY KELSH:
Q.
And Ms. Pichot, could you look at the three-page exhibit?  Can you take us through the first line of page one?
A.
Under the per books column on page one, this demonstrates the per books revenues, expenses and debt service coverage computations based on the District's June 30th, 2004 financial statements and report that was filed with the Public Service Commission.
Q.
Then you made going level adjustments.  What's the basis of that adjustment?
A.
We have been currently doing some work for the District based on the refinancing of some of their loans and these going level adjustments are based on some estimated flows that are expected which are explained to me in excess of the 116 million gallon flow in the Staff report.  So because we had these more current estimated numbers, we based our demonstration here on those higher numbers.

Q.
Staff used water meter readings of 116 million per year; is that correct?

A.
Right.  And our going level adjustment is to bring that up to 118,789,000.

Q.
Okay.  Did you have more current data that you can also project that into the future?
A.
Yes, that's correct.

Q.
And your going level adjustment is added to your per books in order to get us the going level adjusted balance?
A.
That's correct.
Q.
Next we have a step one pro forma adjustments.  What's the basis for that?
A.
That's based on the Staff's recommended $3.36 per thousand rate.

Q.
Okay.  And you're going to get 110,000 to cover that?
A.
Right.  In order to maintain coverage at 125 percent, we would need to increase the District's revenues by $110,000.
Q.
All right.  And then that gives us our step one pro forma adjustment balance?
A.
Right.  Without that adjusted pro forma, we would be at about 102 percent coverage and the District has to have 115 percent coverage requirement.

Q.
And you have set a target coverage rate of 125 percent.  Why have you done that?
A.
We've done that to be prudent for the --- essentially the same reason that the Staff has recommended more than 115 percent coverage for the City of Charles Town.  There needs to be a surplus to cover capital expenditures that aren't going to be financed through bond issues or other borrowings and to cover unexpected operating costs.
Q.
And when the District falls below 115 percent, it's in technical default of its bonds?
A.
That is correct.
Q.
And usually required to operate at the deficit?
A.
That's correct.

Q.
And if you set it right at 115, then a year from now, you'll have to file another rate case?
A.
More than likely.
Q.
Okay.  Then you have the step two pro forma adjustments?
A.
Yes, the step two adjustment is in the Staff original recommendations.  The step two would be to move the $3.36 rate up to $4.50 a thousand and this is the adjustment that would be required in order to maintain the 125-percent coverage.  And if this second increase of $135,000 in revenues wasn't implemented, the District's coverage would fall to about 74 percent.
Q.
In that case, a step two pro forma adjusted balance?
A.
Correct.
Q.
Okay.  Is there anything else on page one that you think you need to bring to the Commission's attention today?
A.
No.
Q.
Okay.  Next we have page two.  Is this a similar analysis with the step two with rate the parties have reviewed?
A.
That's correct.  Through the step one pro forma adjusted balance were the same as the numbers on the first page and then the step two pro forma adjustment is actually to bring the rate up from $3.36 a thousand to $3.71 a thousand.  And as you can see, instead of requiring $135,000 increase in revenues for the District, it would require about a $42,000 increase.  Without this adjustment in the second step so the District would have coverage of about 94 percent.

Q.
All right.  Is there anything else on page two that needs to be discussed?
A.
No.
Q.
All right.  Turn to page three.  Is this where the rubber hits the road here in the District rates?
A.
Yes, this is the effect on the District customers.
Q.
All right.  Let's just get to the bottom where you have the resale rate increases.
A.
Sure.
Q.
First of all, what is the District's current rate per thousand?  Is it a $10 set amount?
A.
$10.50 at the thousand.
Q.
Those are relatively high rates for customers?
A.
Yes, they are.
Q.
Would the resale rate increase to $3.36 per thousand gallons of metered water use, how would the minimum bill increase?
A.
The minimum bill would increase $2.32 to $29.29.

Q.
And for --- the District has some customers who have an unmetered water source and their bill is a flat rate based on 4,500 gallons consumption, that's also the national average for consumption.
A.
Correct.
Q.
What's the rate increase that the step one increases for 4,500 gallons to the flat rate customers?
A.
The step rate increase for the flat rate customers would be $4.17.
Q.
All right.  Now, Staff's original recommendation was for a step two increase of $4.50.  What's the increase --- what would the increase, the effect of that increase, be upon the minimum and flat rate bills?
A.
An increase of $4.50 a thousand would increase the minimum bill by $5.17 and would increase the flat rate bill by $9.30.
Q.
Okay.  And the flat rate bill would be how much?
A.
The flat rate bill would be $57.86 a month.
Q.
With the rate as far as agreed to this morning of $3.71, how does that compare with respect to the minimum bill and the flat bill?
A.
That would cause the minimum bill to increase by $3.19 a month to $30.17 and the flat rate increase would be $5.75 a month, which would create a new flat rate bill of $54.30.
Q.
Is there anything else that you believe is prudent and wish to tell today?
A.
No.



ATTORNEY KELSH:


The witness is available for Cross Examination.  



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


No questions, Your Honor.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Mr. Glover?



ATTORNEY GLOVER:


No questions, Your Honor.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Mr. Robertson?



ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


I just have one question.  

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:
Q.
Looking at the minimum bill, the 2,500, that's based on 2,500 gallons of water, the minimum bill?
A.
Yes.
Q.
Where you have minimum bill in the parenthesis?
A.
That's correct.


ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


Okay.  I have no further questions, Your Honor.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Mr. Coakley?



MR. COAKLEY:


No.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Any Redirect?



ATTORNEY KELSH:


No Redirect.  I'd move City Exhibit Number One into evidence --- I'm sorry, District Exhibit Number One.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Any objection to the admission ---



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


None.  No objection.



JUDGE GEORGE:


--- into evidence of PSD Exhibit One?



ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


None, no.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Hearing no objection, it's admitted into evidence.  You may call your next witness.  Thank you very much.  



ATTORNEY KELSH:


We'd like to call Sue Lawton.

---------------------------------------------------------SUE LAWTON, HAVING FIRST BEEN DULY SWORN, TESTIFIED AS FOLLOWS:

---------------------------------------------------------

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY ATTORNEY KELSH:
Q.
Ms. Lawton, where are you employed?
A.
Jefferson County Public Service District.
Q.
And what's your position there?
A.
General manager. 

Q.
And how long have you been the general manager?
A.
Almost three years.
Q.
In the transmittal letter to the Staff where the Staff recommends increased grease traps inspections and they also recommend that Charles Town see that its satellite customers are also implementing increased grease trap inspections.  Did the District support this requirement?
A.
Yes, we did.
Q.
Do you believe grease traps are always effective in preventing kitchen grease from getting into the system?
A.
No, they aren't.
Q.
How do they fail to catch the grease?
A.
The grease traps that are required by the health department here are often just small basins under sinks in restaurants.  What happens is when the water's hot and the dishes are being washed and all that goes in there and the grease and solution goes right through the grease trap and doesn't solidify until it gets out in the system and cools off.
Q.
Would a different type of grease trap improve matters?
A.
Yes.
Q.
And perhaps the District and Charles Town should work with the health department to get a new type of grease trap established, these things replaced?
A.
Certainly.
Q.
Is the District willing to take on its own grease trap inspection program or work with the health department in that regard?
A.
We have attempted to work with the health department and we will continue to try to work with them on that.  We do have a couple of places that we do inspect on a regular basis because we know that there's problems there.  But the only grease trap that they were required to put in by the health department is not sufficient for the job.
Q.
Okay.  And grease bypasses the grease traps, that results in high BOD; isn't that correct?
A.
I haven't seen data to support that.
Q.
Okay.  Let's talk about flow meters.  The Administrative Law Judge referred to the 1988 agreement. 

I know that you weren't employed by the District back in 1988, but in your work at the District, have you learned at one time long ago that there were flow meters on the system?
A.
Yes.
Q.
And they failed to work and so they were removed, is that fair to say?
A.
Yes.
Q.
And then recently, the parties have worked to reinstall those flow meters or install new flow meters; correct?
A.
Right.
Q.
And do you know when those flow meters were installed?
A.
Six or eight months ago.
Q.
Okay.  And were there problems with those as they had them installed?
A.
Yes.
Q.
Why don't you review those for us?
A.
The problems had been numerous.  There have been computer programming issues, there have been issues with the readouts from the meters themselves.  There have been issues with the way the flows are analyzed.  Those are some of the issues.

Q.
Okay.  Now, who is reading the flow meters now?
A.
Each month, two members of the PSD staff go out and read them, our billing clerk and my maintenance person.
Q.
Okay.  And you inform Charles Town and Ranson in advance that you're going to go take a flow meter reading?
A.
At least a week in advance.  They're all 

e-mailed, they're both e-mailed and invited to come along.

Q.
And have they attended those meter readings?
A.
No.
Q.
Once the flow meter data is gathered by the PSD staff, what's done with that?
A.
They go out to the site.  We purchased a laptop computer that has the information for the flow meters on it.  When they get to the site, they connect the laptop to the data ports on the flow meter readout and upload the information from the flow meters then take them back to the office, download it into the computer.  It's taken from it's form and put onto a blank Excel sheet and then it gets loaded onto an Excel sheet that is provided by Hugh Engineering.
Q.
Okay.  Now, who is Hugh Engineering?
A.
They are Charles Town's and Ranson's engineer, and ---.
Q.
And did Hugh Engineering design the flow meter system in terms of where the flow meters were going to be placed and what type of flow meter would be used?
A.
Yes.
Q.
All right.  And they have a contract to continue involvement and work with this flow meter data?
A.
Yes.


JUDGE GEORGE:


Did the '88 agreement require the District to put those meters in and own those meters?
A.
I know the '88 agreement talked about using flow meters, but I don't know if it required the District per se to install the flow meters.  I don't think it said anything about the resale.  I could be wrong, but ---.



JUDGE GEORGE:


But you being the District own four of the meters?
A.
Yes, sir.



JUDGE GEORGE:


And do you know why that is?
A.
Because four of them measure mainly District flows.


JUDGE GEORGE:


District flows into Charles Town?
A.
Yes.
BY ATTORNEY KELSH:
Q.
And in the negotiation between parties is that the District refers to the flow meters which measure its flow versus the flow meter that only measures its flow?
A.
Yes.


JUDGE GEORGE:


Just ballpark, how much did the meter cost?
A.
For our four flow meters, it was $66,958 and then on top of that we purchased the laptop computer, which was another $800.



JUDGE GEORGE:


$80 ---?
A.
$800.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Oh, okay.  So that was for four meters?
A.
For the four meters were $66,958.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Thank you.

BY ATTORNEY KELSH:
Q.
You talked about receiving the data, downloading the data.  And is there problems with that process which had caused District staff to contact the vendor of the software and the vendors of the flow meters to resolve the problems?
A.
Yes, yes.
Q.
And did that take a couple of months to get those bugs worked out, is that fair to say?
A.
More than that.  They're still in contact with the vendor quite often.  Sometimes they're in default or a hose that may come out and the vendor sometimes has to make a trip out here or they can sometimes tell us by phone what those faults mean and correct them.
Q.
Now, is there just one vendor or is that ---?
A.
Yes.
Q.
Okay.  So the manufacturer of the flow meter itself is also the software vendor or is it just the software vendor you're having problems with?
A.
No.  The manufacturer of the flow meter also has the software for it, but they have different vendors or different people who sell their brand of flow meter and we deal with the vendor.
Q.
Okay.  And so the District staff has been working with this vendor to try and get better, more reliable data?
A.
Correct.
Q.
Do you think that aspect of flow meter reading systems are working well now or do you still have problems with that? 

A.
We have questions on how some of the 

averages --- how the flow meters themselves figure their readouts that they give us.  And you get a 15-minute readout and we have concerns that possibly the readouts are indicating the high flow instead of the average flow from that 15 minutes.  We also have continual issues of the data that is given to the three entities that shows the flow because some of the information, the adjustments that are done, are not shown on the report and we don't know how they're being calculated.

Q.
So you collect the data and you work with the vendor to fix it?  But at some point, do you work with the vendor to fix it, send it on to Hugh engineers or ---?
A.
Well, usually when we have a problem with the meter, we are working with the vendor in order to get the data to send on to the Hugh engineers.
Q.
But at some point you would be sending data on to Hugh Engineering?
A.
Yes.
Q.
All right.  Have you been able to do that every month or has it been some months you haven't been able to fix the problem, or ---?
A.
In the beginning, there were a couple of months when we could not get data from all of the meters but in the past few months, we have been able to at least collect the data from the meters.
Q.
Okay.  And they send it on to the Hugh engineers and the Hugh engineers made some modifications to it, 

or ---?
A.
They do make some modifications.  I don't know exactly what they do.

Q.
Do the flow meters that are installed now measure --- there's six of them and the District owns four and Ranson owns one.  Do the four that the District owns only measure flows generated by District customers or do some of its flow meters capture commingling flows, flows from some Ranson customers, some Charles Town customers?
A.
Yes, some of them do capture commingled flows.
Q.
Okay.  And how do you figure out how much allocation to make of those commingled flows?
A.
We need the water meter readings for those facilities whose flows come in to the District's flow meters and those have to be subtracted, what percentage needs to be subtracted.

Q.
All right.  And do you know about any of these flow meters that have commingled flows, are all the meter readings coming in at the same time or are some of those split or part of them read by Charles Town this month and part of them are read by Charles Town the next month?
A.
Yes, some of them are split.
Q.
Okay.  So that makes the flow meters problematic in order to make that a monthly allocation; does it not?
A.
Yes.
Q.
And then do you have concerns about how Hugh Engineering is handling the data once it's sent on to them?
A.
Yes, because when we get it back, many of the sales, instead of having the numbers that are in there, they have an indication that it is pulling data from the C drive in the engineer's computer and we don't know what that data is.
Q.
So there's some Excel formula that you don't know what it is that's modifying the data?
A.
Correct, correct.
Q.
Do you have other concerns?



JUDGE GEORGE:


It doesn't correspond with what you've pulled up; is that correct?
A.
We don't have any idea of what it is so we can't --- we don't have any way to figure, to look at it and calculate whether the data's correct.


JUDGE GEORGE:


Have you raised those issues with Hugh?
A.
Yes.



JUDGE GEORGE:


And are they addressing them?

A.
He's trying to, I think.
BY ATTORNEY KERSH:
Q.
Are there any other difficulties which the District has encountered in dealing with the District flow meters that you'd like to raise today?
A.
Well, basically, just learning about these flow meters and the programs and the maintenance of them has been quite a long process.  It's not a quick learning curve to understand these things.  If it does get transferred to someone else, they're going to have to go through the same learning curve again.  We do go out and calibrate them every six months and that's an automatic function that happens through part of the program.  You just connect it to the data port with the computer and it calibrates them and we have done that.


JUDGE GEORGE:


So would it be fair for me to interpret what you've just said as saying that you don't think it's necessarily a good idea to transfer ownership of these meters to a different entity?
A.
Yes, I think that's fair.

BY ATTORNEY KELSH:
Q.
Is it a District preference that it retains responsibility as it pertains to the role it currently has in reading the flow meters?
A.
We do like to do that, yes.
Q.
Now, the actual ownership of the flow meters, and the District is dealing with that --- on the flow meters; is it not?
A.
Yes.
Q.
All right.  So those issues are potentially separable; right?
A.
Yes.
Q.
Do you have anything else you'd like to bring to the Commission's attention today?
A.
No.



ATTORNEY KELSH:


Okay.  Thank you, Sue.  She's available for Cross Examination.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Mr. Shingleton?



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


Thank you.

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:
Q.
Concerning the flow meter, would it be fair to say from your knowledge, it's Charles Town's position that Ranson and all three entities are frustrated with the flow meter issue?
A.
Yes.
Q.
Getting to the ownership of them, if the District had access to the data and the availability to accompany Charles Town personnel to read the meters, would there be any objection to one entity owning the meters so throughout the system these interconnecting flow meters for the purpose of determining on a somewhat more rational basis how the meters are read and how the data could then perhaps be better interpreted?
A.
I don't know.  I don't know what you mean by more rational.
Q.
Well, if you maintain four --- you now own four of the meters?
A.
We maintain all of them now.  We maintain all six of them and we read all six of them, but we own four of them.
Q.
You own four?
A.
Yes.
Q.
I don't know if you have --- have you read the entire report from the Staff in this case?
A.
Yes.
Q.
There's a recommendation to, I believe, purchase two more and install one and keep one as a backup.  Are you aware of that?
A.
Yes, I am.
Q.
But wouldn't you agree with me that all the meters need to be read in some type of systematic way as far as the timing of when they're read so that the data is relatively time-sensitive?
A.
Yes.
Q.
Okay.  But you wouldn't be opposed to transferring ownership of the meters to Charles Town?
A.
No.
Q.
Okay.  



JUDGE GEORGE:


You know, it's not going to bother you if he writes you a $66,000 check for the meters?
A.
No.



JUDGE GEORGE:


But you'd still like to be able to be involved in the process of reading them since you've invested this time and effort in learning how to do it?
A.
Right.



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


I have no further questions of the witness, Your Honor.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Mr. Glover?



ATTORNEY GLOVER:


Judge, thank you.

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY ATTORNEY GLOVER:
Q.
Do you know if the meters are transferred, do you know whether it will go to the utility as well?
A.
Yes, it does.
Q.
It does?
A.
Uh-huh (yes).



ATTORNEY GLOVER:


Thank you.  That's all I have.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Mr. Robertson?



ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


I have no questions of Ms. Lawton.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Mr. Coakley? 



MR. COAKLEY:


No.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Any Redirect?



ATTORNEY KELSH:


Just one.
REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY ATTORNEY KELSH:
Q.
Sue, the Administrative Law Judge asked you a question pertaining to roles.  The District feels it's sort of a --- human capital skills, if you will in working the specifics in getting these flow meters to work; is that fair to say?
A.
Yes, it is.
Q.
And are you concerned that if you hand it off to a new entity that they're going to have to relearn what you've already learned and get things to work right?
A.
Yes.



ATTORNEY KELSH:


Thank you.  That's all I have.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Anything further of this witness?



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


No.



ATTORNEY ROBERTSON:


No, Your Honor.



JUDGE GEORGE:


You may step aside.  Thank you very much.  Mr. Kelsh, do you have additional evidence?



ATTORNEY KELSH:


No further witnesses.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Mr. Coakley, do you have evidence?



MR. COAKLEY:


No.



JUDGE GEORGE:


Thank you, sir.  Anything else we need to do today except establish a briefing schedule?  I don't have any indication in my notes that I expedited the briefs so the briefs will come in in the ordinary course on the 22nd.  I'd like the reply briefs on the 29th --- I mean the initial briefs on the 29th and reply briefs on the 1st of April.  



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


Initial on the 29th?



JUDGE GEORGE:


Yes.



ATTORNEY SHINGLETON:


And reply on the 1st?



JUDGE GEORGE:


Yes, and the parties need to --- and I'll explain briefing a little bit better in a second, but the parties need to try to submit their briefs to each other electronically if they can, e-mail or FAX or some way so they actually get served on the day they're filed.  



ATTORNEY GLOVER:


E-mail.  Can you advise after the hearing everybody with an e-mail address and we'll supply them with an e-mail?



JUDGE GEORGE:


And Mr. Coakley, what briefing is is it's your opportunity to tell me what you want me to do, tell me what you think you've proven in this case.  All parties will have that opportunity and you'll get copies of their initial briefs hopefully in your e-mail program and then you can file a --- you can respond to those in your reply briefs.  And you'll have a copy of the transcript sent to you as well that you'll get hopefully before briefing.  Anything else we need to do today?  If not, hearing's adjourned.  Thank you very much.

* * * * * * * *

HEARING CONCLUDED AT 2:39 P.M.

* * * * * * * *
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